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MILESTONES & MOMENTUM 

ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED 

2011 - Foundation Laid 

e Incorporated on 27th September 2011 as Anya Polytech Private 
Limited under the Companies Act, 1956. 

. 
2013 - Initial Growth Phase 

¢ Commissioned the first automated granulation line. 

* Secured the first government contract for urea HDPE bags supply. 

2014 - Strategic Realignment & Name Change 

* 19th November 2014: Shareholders passed a Special Resolution 
altering the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association. 

* The Company also passed a Board Resolution to add a Fertilizers Unit. 
laying the foundation for future diversification. 

e 17th December 2014: Company name changed to Anya Polytech & 
Fertilizers Private Limited. 

2015 - Product Diversification 

e Introduced chemical fertilizers, micronutrients, and organic 

fertilizer product lines. 

* Expanded market presence across PAN-India. 
* Established an in-house R&D laboratory for soil and crop nutrition 

testing. 

2019 - Private Equity Infusion 

* Secured first round of private equity funding to expand manufacturing 
capacity. 

2020 - Resilience amidst Pandemic 

* Maintained uninterrupted supply chain operations during COVID-19 
lockdowns. 

e Extended unwavering support to farmers throughout the crisis 
without any disruption. 

* Achieved a significant increase in turnover despite challenging market 
conditions. 

e Introduced doorstep delivery services for farmer clusters, ensuring 
timely access to inputs. 
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2021 - National Footprint 

Expanded distribution network across PAN-India. strengthening 
presence in diverse agri-markets. 
Obtained I1SO 9001:2015 certifications, reinforcing focus on quality 
and compliance 

Achieved a major milestone of ¥100+ Crore in annual revenue. 
Enhanced business portfolio through the acquisition of shares in M/s 
Arawali Phosphate Limited. adding a new subsidiary to the Group. 

2022 - Sustainability Initiatives 

Installed solar panels at the primary manufacturing facility to reduce 
energy dependency and promote clean energy. 
Announced plans to establish the “Anya Unnati Kendra” as a dedicated 
farmer outreach and support centre. 

2023 - Innovation & Transformation 

Launched crop-specific nutrition kits for wheat, paddy, and sugarcane, 
strengthening the product portfolio. 

Ordinary Resolution passed in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 
(EGM) for conversion of the Company from Private Limited to Public 
Limited. 
Company name formally changed to Anya Polytech & Fertilizers 
Limited. 

Established the “Anya Unnati Kendra” - a farmer outreach and support 
initiative offering advisory, training, and agri-input solutions. 

2024 - Corporate Structuring 

Advanced toward IPO readiness and strengthened listing compliance; 
Initiated fertilizer exports to neighbouring countries. 

2025 - Momentum Forward 

On 2nd January 2025, successfully listed on the National Stock 
Exchange (NSE) SME Emerge platform. marking a landmark 
achievement in the Company’s journey. 
Completed the acquisition of Polyfirm Packaging Private Limited. 
adding a new Polypropylene Packaging (PP) Plant at the Bhopal Unit 

and strengthening backward integration. 
On track to emerge among India’s Top 10 mid-sized agri-input 
companies, driven by innovation, expansion, and sustainability. 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR NOTE 

Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav 

(Chairman & Managing 

Director) 

Dear Esteemed Shareholders, 

It gives me great pleasure to present before you the Annual Report of Anya Polytech & 
Fertilizers Limited for the financial year 2024-25. This year has been a landmark one in our 
corporate journey, marked by important milestones, meaningful progress, and renewed 

confidence in our future. 
The most significant achievement of the year was the successful listing of our equity shares 
on the SME platform of the National Stock Exchange on 2nd January 2025. This step has not 
only elevated our corporate profile but also placed upon us a greater responsibility to 

uphold transparency, accountability, and the highest standards of corporate governance. 
The listing reflects the faith and trust of our shareholders, and we remain deeply committed 
to rewarding that trust through consistent performance and long-term value creation. The 

listing reflects the faith and trust of our shareholders, and we remain deeply committed to 
rewarding that trust through consistent performance and long-term value creation. 
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From a financial perspective, the year under review witnessed modest but steady growth in 
revenues. We achieved an increase in tumover compared to the previous year, supported by 
better realizations in certain product categories and improved cost management measures. 

While we continued to report a loss at the bottom line, it is encouraging to note that both 
our EBITDA and net losses have reduced as compared to the previous year. This 
improvement, though gradual, underscores our focused efforts in operational efficiency, 
disciplined financial management, and strategic decision-making. 

‘We are conscious of the challenges that lie ahead in the fertilizer and polymer 
industries—ranging from raw material volatility to competitive pressures and 
evolving regulatory frameworks. However, we also see immense opportunities, 
particularly in strengthening our distribution reach. diversifying our product 
portfolio, and embracing sustainable practices that align with national priorities 
and global expectations. At Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, we view ourselves 
not merely as manufacturers but as partners in progress—empowering farmers, 
supporting rural livelihoods, and contributing to India’s larger food security 

mission. 

Our commitment to sound governance has remained unwavering. Even at this 
stage, we have voluntarily constituted key statutory committees of the Board and 
inducted independent directors, including a woman director, to ensure balanced 
and transparent decision-making. We believe that governance is not merely a 
regulatory requirement but the foundation of long-term corporate sustainability. 

None of our progress would have been possible without the dedication of our 
employees, the guidance of our Board of Directors, the loyalty of our customers, and 
the continued trust and encouragement of our shareholders. I extend my heartfelt 
gratitude to all of you for being integral to this journey. 

As we look to the future, we remain guided by a clear vision—to build Anya Polytech & 
Fertilizers Limited into a resilient, responsible, and respected organization that creates 
sustainable value for all stakeholders. The road ahead may have its share of challenges, 
but with your support and our collective determination, I am confident that we will 
achieve new milestones and scale greater heights in the years to come. 
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DIRECTOR’S NOTE 

Dear Esteemed Shareholders, 

At Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, we are 
not just manufacturing agricultural inputs - we 

are shaping the future of sustainable farming in 
India. Our purpose goes beyond production; it 
lies in creating value through science, 
stewardship, and service — enabling farmers to 

grow more, with less, and to do so with care for 
the land that sustains us all. The financial year 
2024-25 marked a period of strategic 
expansion, product innovation, and deeper 
farmer engagement. We are pleased to reporta 

strong performance, with revenue growth of 
19.4%, driven by the rising demand for our bio- 
enhanced fertilizers, expansion into new 
agrarian markets, and the successful 
commissioning of our new manufacturing 
facllity in Rajasthan. In line with our 
commitment to sustainability, we continue to 1 

invest in eco-friendly formulations and low- Mr. Tej Pal Si ngh 
carbon production methods. Our Zero i 
D'schzrgepl’olicy, combined with renewable (DlreCtor) 
energy adoption at select plants, reaffirms our 
position as a responsible contributor to the 
agricultural value chain. 

This year, our focus on farmer education and empowerment also gained momentum. 
Over 20,000 farmers across six states benefitted from our on-ground training sessions, 
model plot demonstrations, and sustainable farming workshops. Our aim is not just to 
sell inputs but to build trust and long-term relationships that improve livelihoods and 

agricultural resilience. 
We have also taken significant strides in strengthening our distribution network 
enhancing logistics, and expanding our digital presence. Our reimagined e-commerce 

platform now connects retailers and farmers with real-time inventory. technical 
support, and product knowledge - all at the click of a button. 

To our dedicated team at Anya Polytech — thank you. Your hard work values, and 
unwavering commitment to excellence are the backbone of this organization. You are 

the ones who turn our vision into meaningful action. 
And to you, our valued shareholders — we are deeply grateful for your trust and 

continued support. Your belief in our purpose inspires us to innovate fearlessly, grow 
responsibly, and contribute meaningfully to the agricultural transformation of our 

nation. 
As we look ahead, our mission is clear: to provide farmers with the tools, knowledge, 
and confidence to grow more sustainably. Because at Anya Polytech & Fertilizers 

Limited, we are not only cultivating crops — we are cultivating futures. 
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'ZINC-EDTA 
CHELATED - 12% 
(Ethylene Diamine Tetra Acetic Acid) 

MFG. & MARKETED BY: 
ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED 

Nt Welght 
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Anya Zn EDTA12% 
Benifits 
« EDTA chelated 100% chelation. 

= Follar Application: 1-2 gm per liter of water for all crops. 
+ Soil application: 500gm of Anya 2n-EDTA 12% opply for 1 acre. 

Manufactured & Marketed By: 

Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Ltd. (APFL) 
UPSIDC industrial Area, Village Keshurehal, 
‘Shahjahanpur- 242001, U.P. 
Websits : www.apfLin Kisan Helpline : 05842-295813 

ZINC-EDTA 
CHELATED - 12% 
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STATUTORY REPORT



Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

NOTICE OF 14* ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 14" (Fourteenth) Annual General Meeting of the Members of 
Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited (CIN: U01403DL2011PLC225541), will be held on 
Monday, the 29% day of September, 2025 at 12: 00 p.m. Indian Standard Time (IST) at the 
registered office of the Company at S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, International 
Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 to transact the following business (es): 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2025 and Reports of Board of Directors and Reports of 
Auditors thereon. 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 
circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 and Reports of Board of Directors 
and Reports of Auditors thereon. 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the report of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 

Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

3. To re-appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tejpal Singh (DIN 06898372), who retires by 
rotation in terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act’2013 and being eligible, offers 
himself for reappolntment. 

To consider; and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Tejpal Singh (DIN 06898372), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director 

of the Company." 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. Appointment of Secretarial Auditors 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015 [including any statutory medification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being 

in force] M/s Sanket Jain & Co. (Peer Reviewed Firm) (Firm Registration No. 
52013UP231400) Company Secretaries, be and hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of 
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Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

the Company for conducting Secretarial Audit and issue the Secretarial Compliance Report 
for the term of 1 (One) years from Financial Year April 01, 2025 to March 31, 2026 at such 
remuneration, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company 
and the Secretarial Auditors.” 

5. Appointment of Cost Auditor and to fix Remuneration 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 [including any statutory modification(s) or re- 
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] read with the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, M/s Yash Sardana & Associates, Cost 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101497) be and are hereby appointed as Cost Auditors 
of the Company for the FY 2025-26 to conduct Cost Audit of cost records made and 
maintained by the Company pertaining to product/services related to CETA heading 2833 
falling under the name of the State Organic and Inorganic Chemicals etc. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT as per rule 3 of Companies (Cost Record Audit rules) 2014 

the remuneration of 31,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) plus applicable tazes and re- 
imbursement of out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s Yash Sardana & Associates, Cost 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101497) for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2026 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav, Managing Director of the Company, 
be and is hereby authorized to submit the necessary intimation in form CRA-2 to CG for 
appointment of Cost Auditors by the Company and to do and perform all such acts as may 
be necessary or expedient for the Purpose of giving effect to the above." 

6. Material Related Party Transactions of the Company with Arawali Phosphate Limited 
(“APL"), Polyfirm Packaging Private Limited (“PPPL") and Yara Green Energy Private 
Limited ("YGEPL"), being fellow subsidiaries of the Company 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1)(zc), 23 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulatlons, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), 
as amended from time to time, Section 2(76) and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) read with the Rules framed thereunder [including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], other 
applicable laws / statutory provisions, if any, the Company’s Pelicy on Material Related 
Party Transactions and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, consent of 

the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board), which term shall be deemed to include the 
Audit Committee or any other Committee constituted/ empowered / to be constituted by 

the Board from time to time to exercise its powers conferred by this Resolution) for the 
Materfal Related Party Transaction(s)/ Contract(s) / Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) 
entered into / proposed to be entered into (whether by way of an individual transaction or 
transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise), as mentioned in detail 

in the Explanatory Statement annexed herewith, between the Company and Arawall 
Phosphate Limited ("APL"), Polyfirm Packaging Private Limited ("PPPL") and Yara Green 
Energy Private Limited ("YGEPL") being fellow subsidiaries and thus “Related Parties” of 

the Company, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the partles, 
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Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

[for an aggregate value not exceeding ‘Rs. 17,34,95,000 during the Financial Year 2025-26, 

provided that such transaction(s) / contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) is / are 
carried out at an arm’s length pricing basis and in the ordinary course of business.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do and perform all 
such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary, including but not limited to, 
finalizing the terms and conditions, methods and modes in respect of executing necessary 
documents, including contract(s) / arrangement(s)/ agreement(s) and other ancillary 
documents; seeking necessary approvals from the authorities; settling all such issues, 
questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions 
from powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to 
any Director; Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer / Authorised 
Representative of the Company, without being required to seek further consent from the 
Members and that the Members shail be deemed to have accorded their consent thereto 
expressly by the authority of this Resolution.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board In connection with any matter 
referred to or contemplated in this Resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and 
confirmed in all respects.” 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 

sd/- 
Aayushee Bhatia 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
ACS: 52545 

Date: 28.08.2025 
Place: Delhi 

Registered Office: 
§ -2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 
International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

CIN: U01403DL2011PLC225541 
E-mail: contact@apflin 
Website: www.apfl.in 
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Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

NOTES: 

1. A Statement setting out material facts pursuant to the provisions of Section 102(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in respect of special businesses set out at [tem No. 4 & 5 of 

the Notice is annexed hereto. Further, additional information with respect to Item No. 3 is 
also appended hereto. 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT ONE OR MORFE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ 
HERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER 
TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DULY FILLED. STAMPED, SIGNED AND SHOULD BE 
DEPOSITED AT THE COMPANY'S REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT 
HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. PROXIES SUBMITTED ON 
BEHALF OF LIMITED COMPANIES, SOCIETIES. PARTNERSHIP FIRMS, ETC, MUST BE 
SUPPORTED BY APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION / AUTHORITY AS APPLICABLE, ISSUED ON 
BEHALF OF THE APPOINTING ORGANISATION. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF 
OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE 
THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. 
IN CASE A PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 
109% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, THEN 
SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR MEMBER. THE 
PROXYHOLDER SHALL PROVE HIS IDENTITY AT THE TIME OF ATTENDING THE MEETING. 
IN CASE OF JOINT HOLDERS ATTENDING THE MEETING, ONLY SUCH JOINT HOLDER WHO 
IS HIGHER IN THE ORDER OF NAMES WILL BE ENTITLED TO VOTE. 

3. Members / Proxies / Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slip, annexed 
herewith for attending the meeting, duly completed and signed mentioning therein details 

of their DP ID and Client ID / Folio No. 

4. The Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 along with 
Notice, process and manner of remote e-voting, Attendance Slip and Proxy form are being 

sent by e-mail to those Members who have registered their e-mail address with Company's 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents viz Skyline Financial Services Private Limited (“RTA") 
or with their respective Depository Participant (“DP”). A letter containing the web link, 

along with the exact path to access the complete details of the Annual Report, is being sent 
to shareholders who have not registered their email address with the Company’s RTA or DP. 
For convenience of Members, route map of the venue of the AGM is enclosed in this Annual 
Report. 

5. Only Members / Proxies / Representatives / Invitees of the Company are permitted to 
attend the Meeting at the venue. Attendance of any other individuals, including relatives 
and acquaintances accompanying Members, is strictly prohibited. 

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors 
are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act and relevant documents referred to 
in this Notice of AGM and explanatory statement will be available for inspection by the 
Members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for 
electronic inspection without any fee by the Members on all working days between 10.00 
am. IST to 5.00 p.m. IST from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. i.e. 

September 29, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an e-mail to 
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Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

7. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 

from Tuesday, September 23, 2025 to Monday, September 29, 2025 (both days inclusive) 
for ascertaining entitlement of Members eligible to receive the dividend if declared in the 
meeting, 

8. In continuation with the MCA General Circulars No. 20/2020 dated May 5. 2020. SEBI 
Circular Nos. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated Jan 15, 2021 and in accordance 
with the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated Sep 19, 2024 SEBI/HO/CFD/ PoD-2 
PCIR/2024/133 dated Oct 3, 2024 the financial statements (including Board's Report, 
Auditor’s Report or other documents required to be attached therewith) for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025 pursuant to Section 136 of the Act and Notice calling the AGM 
pursuant to Section 101 of the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder; such statements 

Including the Notice of AGM are being sent only in electronic mode to those Members 
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / or the Depository 
Participant(s). A letter containing the web link, along with the exact path to access the 
complete details of the Annual Report, is being sent to shareholders who have not 
registered thelr emall address with the Company’s RTA or DP. The physical coples of such 
statements and Notice of AGM will be dispatched only to those shareholders who request 
for the same. Members who are desirous of obtaining hard copy of the Annual Report 

should send a request to the Company’s e-mail id viz, secretadal@apflin clearly 
mentioning their Folio numiber / DP ID and Client ID. A copy of the Notice of this AGM along 

with integrated Annual Report for the FY 2025 is available on the website of the Company 
at www.aoflin , website of the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed 
Le. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively. 

9. Members who are attending the meeting in person and would like to express their 
views/have questions, may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in 
advance mentioning their name, demat account number/ folio number, e-mail id, mobile 
number at +91- 9818456709 from the date of this notice up to September 26, 2025 (5:00 
p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be 
allowed to express their views/ ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the 

right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 
Members are requested to share their questions If any in advance on secretarial @apfi.in . In 

case of any query and/or help, in respect of attending AGM kindly contact the Company at 
secretarial@apflin , or Mr. Virender Kumar Rana, Director, Skyline Financlal Services Private 

Limited at D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020 or at the 

email ID admin@skylinerta.com or on phone No.: +91-11-40450193-96 or call Skyline 
Financial Services Private Limited toll free No.: 011-40450193 to 011-40450197 for any 
further clarifications. 

10. Members holding shares in physical form, whose folio(s) lack PAN, Contact Details, Mobile 
Number, Bank Account Detalls, or updated Specimen Signature, will only be eligible for any 
payment, including dividends, interest, or redemption, through electronic mode from April 
01, 2024, as per SEBI directives. Therefore, Members holding shares in physical form are 

requested to update the mentioned details by completing the appropriate ISR forms with 
the RTA to ensure receipt of dividends. 

11, The Members may send their complaints /queries, If any to the Company’s RTA at e-mail id: 
admin@skylinertacom or to the Company's designated/exclusive e-mail id: 

12. Members can avall of the facility of nomination In respect of shares held by them in physical 
form pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies 
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(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. Members desiring to avail of this facility may 
send their nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled in to Skyline Financial 
Services Private Limited at the aforementioned address. Members holding shares in 
electronic form may contact their respective DP for avalling this facility. 

13. Other Instructions: 
L The voting rights of Members shall be In proportion to their shares of the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday, September 
21,2025; 

il. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Sanket Jain, (Membership No. A26531 / 
CP No. 12583), Practicing Company Secretary, Jhansi as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the voting process in a fair and transparent manner; 

iii. The scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the general 
meeting, count the votes cast at the meeting and votes cast through remote e- 
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses who are not in the Employment of 
the Company and within a period not exceeding two working days from the 
conclusion of the meeting, submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or person authorized by the 
Chairman in writing for counter signature; 

iv. The Results shall be declared efther by the Chairman or the person authorized by 
the Chairman in writing and the resolutions will be deemed to have been passed 
on the AGM date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour 
thereof: 

v. Promptly after declaration of results, the same shall be placed along with the 
Scrutinizer’s Report on the Company’s website at www.apflin and communicated 
to National Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the shares of the Company are 
listed for placing the same In thelr website; 

vi. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date, should treat this Notice for 
information purpose only. 

‘THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September 26, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 
Sunday, September 28, 2025 at 05:00 PM. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date] i.e. September 21, 2025, may cast their 
vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the 
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 21, 2025. 

How do [ vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way (o vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below: 
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Type of sharcholders Login Method 

Individual ~ Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 

click on the "Beneflcial Owner” icon under “Login” which 
15 avallable under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User [D and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e- 
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider Le. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e- 
Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e- 
Services, option to register is avaflable at 

‘hmas./.tessmsmml.mm Select "Register Online for 
IDeAS or click at 
Wmmmmmmmmw 
R 
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system 1s launched. click on the 
icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 

You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 

mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

@& App Store ’ Google Play 

EiEE 3 

21| ANNUAL REPORT-APFL-2024-25 



G Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 
International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

Individual ~ Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

| =
 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 

login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL website wwi.cdslindia.com and 
click on login icon & New System Mycasi Tab and then 
user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easlest user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the e- 

voting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user 
can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly, 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register Is available at CDSL website 
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click 
on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e- 
Voting link available on wwwi.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able 
to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual ~ Shareholders 
(holding  securites in 
demat mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 

be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
‘company name or e-Voting service provider i.c. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

| Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

secaritles In demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdlcom or call at 022 - 4886 7000 
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Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

or contact at toll free 

Individual Sharchelders holding 
securities in demat mode with 

sl no. 1800-21-09911 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 
How to Log-in to NSDI. e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

hups://wwwevotingnsdlcom/ elther on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system Is launched, click on the icon “Login" which 

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/QTP 
and a Verlfication Code as shown on the screen. 
Altemattve(y ff you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 Le. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
Manner of holding shares i.c. |Your UserID is: 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

a) For Members who hold shares in | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
demat account with NSDL. Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
1D Is IN30Q*** 1 2%+8 448, 

b) For Members who hold shares In | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12%#srsearanessx then your user ID is 
e kereenrerians 

c) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Physical Form. Number registered with the company 

For example if follo number Is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001%* 

5. Password detalls for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 
below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘Initial password,, you need to enter the ‘Initlal password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password'? 

(1) If your emall ID s registered in your demat account or with the 
company, your ‘initial password' is communicated to you on your email 

23| ANNUAL REPORT-APFL-2024-25 



Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the attachment ie. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your User 1D* and your 
"Initial password’. 

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 
send 2 request at gvoting@nsdlcom mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on "Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

Step 2: Castyour vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

\How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

: After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to scc all the companies "EVEN" in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e- 
Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options ie. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page. 

e Once you conflrm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HIUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mall to sanketjaincs@gmailcom with a copy marked to 

. Institutional shareholders (Le. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can 
also upload their Board Resclution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
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on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under "e-Voting” tab in their 

Jogin. 
2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login t the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct nasswotcL In such an event, 

you will need to go through the "Forgot User Detalls/Password?" or “] 
Password?” option avallable on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to (Mr. Aman Goyal- www.eyotingnsdl.com 
Deputy Manager) at mnn@n;d].mm 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the 
depositories for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e- 
voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No,, Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of 

PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 

secretarial@apflin . 
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 

or 16 digit beneficlary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) to secretarial@apflin If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities In demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at 

step 1 (A) ie. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdlcom for 
procuring user {d and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
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Annexure to the Notice of AGM 
Additional Information with respect to Item No. 3 

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

rticulars [petails 

Name of the Director [Mr. Tej Pal Singh. 
DIN 06898372 

te of Birth [August 12,1995 ] —_— 
ate of first appointment on the Board \January 04, 2021 | 

Qualification [Graduate 

ertise in specific functional areas |General management and administration 

irectorships held in other public companies | 
excluding forelgn and private companles) | Arawall Phiospliate Limired 

Number of shares held in the Company |[2.750 

Interest of Directors, KMP and their relatives: 

Save and except Mr. Tej Pal Singh and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel (*KMP") of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 

Recommendation of the Board: 
‘The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at [tem No. 3 of the Notice for 
approval of the Members. 
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This Explanatory Statement is in terms of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 36(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. 

Item No. 4 - Appointment of Secretarial Auditors 

After evaluating and considering various factors such as Industry experience, competence of 
the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc, the Board of Directors of 
the Company has, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its meeting held 
on January 22, 2025, proposed the appointment of M/s. Sanket Jain & Co, (Firm Registration 
No. 52013UP231400) Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, for 
financial year 2024-25. at such remuneration, as may be mutually agreed between the Board 

of Directors of the Company and the Secretarial Auditors. 
M/s. Sanket Jain & Co. has consented to thelr appointment as Secretarial Auditors and has 

confirmed that their appointment will be in accordance with Section 204 of Companies Act, 
2015 read with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, consent of the Members is 
sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notce. None of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of 

the Notice. 

Item No. 5 -Appointment of Cost Auditorand to fix Remuneration 

The Board of Directors, at Its Meeting held on July 08, 2024, upon the recoramendation of the 
Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s Yash Sardana & Associates, Cost 
Accountants having Firm Registration Number 101497, as Cost Auditors of the Company for 
conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the financial year ending March 
31, 2025, ata remuneration of X 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh only) plus reimbursement of out 
of pocket expenses and applicable taxes and to seek certification services as and when 
required (along with necessary fees). Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members of the Company are 
required to ratify the remuneration to be paid to the cost auditors of the Company. 
Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out 
at Item No. 5 of the Notice. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 

sd/- 
Aayushee Bhatia 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
ACS: 52545 

Date: 28.08.2025 
Place: Delhi 

27| ANNUAL REPORT-APFL-2024-25



Anya Unnati Kendra 
A g 



Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your Board of Directors are pleased to present the 14th Annual Report of Anya Polytech & 

Fertilizers Limited (“the Company”) and the Audited Financlal Statements for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025, 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

(Figures in T Lakhs) 

Current Year Previous Year 
[rartculae (2024-25) (2023-24) 
Income from Operations |l11931.18 [11584.26 

174.45 174.80 
'Total Income 12105.63 11759.06 | 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax | (PBIDT) 12105.63 11759.06 

I Less: Finance Cost |510.33 |[320.66 ] 

Depreciation & Amortization “431.49 ]|284.9S 

fit Before Tax (PBT) |l985.06 [1103.37 

Less: Tax Expenses [283.65 [348.61 

fit After Tax (PAT) [701.41 [754.75 

Performance Overview: 
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company achieved a total income of ¥12,105.63 Lakhs, 
reflecting a steady growth compared to the previous year. Profit After Tax (PAT) stood at 
%701.41 Lakhs. The slight decrease in PAT compared to the previous year is primarily 
attributable to higher finance costs and depreciation, associated with the Company’s 
investments in capacity expansion and strategic initiatives. 
The Board remains focused on improving operational efficiency, enhancing revenue streams, 
and strengthening the financial position of the Company to support future growth initiatives. 

2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

During the financial year 2024-25, Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited continued to focus on 
operational excellence, strategic growth, and value creation for its stakeholders. The Company 

recorded a total income of 312,105.63 Lakhs, with Income from Operations contributing 
%11,931.18 Lakhs, reflecting a steady growth over the previous year. 

Key highlights of operations during the year include: 
*  Revenue Growth: The Company achieved an increase in total income compared to the 

previous year, supported by higher sales volumes and effective market strategies. 
*  Profitability: Despite a marginal decrease in Profit After Tax (PAT) to 3701.41 Lakhs, the 

Company inaintained healthy operating margins. The decrease in PAT was primarily due 

to higher finance costs and Increased depreciation arising from strategic capital 
investments. 

* Operational Efficiency: The Company focused on optimizing production processes, 
supply chain management, and resource utilization, resulting in better cost control and 
productivity improvements. 
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* Strategic Initiatives: Investments in capacity expansion, technological upgrades, and 
innovation were undertaken to enhance product quality, operational efficiency, and long- 
term competitiveness. 

The Board is confident that these initiatives will strengthen the Company’s market position 
and provide a sustainable platform for growth In the coming years. 

3.FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited remains focused on sustainable growth and creating long- 

term value for Its stakeholders. The Company Is committed to expanding Its operational 
capabilities, enhancing product offerings, and strengthening its market presence in the 
fertilizer and allied sectors. 

Key areas of focus for the future include: 
* Capacity Expansion: Strategic investments will be made to increase production capacity, 

meet growing demand, and capture new market opportunities, 
* Innovation and Technology: Continued emphasis on research and development, 

adoption of advanced technologies, and process optimization to improve product quality 
and operational efficiency. 

» Market Development: Strengthening distribution networks, exploring new geographies, 

and building customer-centric solutions to enhance competitiveness and market share. 
* Sustainability and Compliance: Focus on environmentally sustainable practices, 

regulatory compliance, and corporate social responsibllity initiatives to align with long- 
term stakeholder expectations. 

* Financial Prudence: Maintaining a strong financial position, optimizing resource 
allocation, and balancing growth with profitability to ensure resilience against market 
fluctuations. 

The Board is optimistic that these initiatives, coupled with a committed workforce and robust 
governance framework, will drive sustainable growth and strengthen the Company's position 
as a trusted leader in the industry. 

4. SHARE CAPITAL & CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

Authorized and Paid-up Capital 

As on 31st March 2025: 

*  The Authorized Share Capital of the Company stands at ¥32,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty- 
Two Crores only), divided into 16,00,00,000 equity shares of X2 each. 

* The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital stands at 17,60,00,000 (Rupees 
Seventeen Crores Sixty Lakhs only), comprising 8,80,00,000 equity shares of ¥2 each. 

Sub-division of Shares 

Pursuant to the approval of shareholders vide resolution passed on 25th April 2024, the 
Authorized Share Capital of the Company comprising 3,20,00,000 equity shares of face value 

%10 each was sub-divided into 16,00,00,000 equity shares of face value 32 each. 

Listing & Liquidity 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and 
continue to remain in active trading. All shares issued during the year, including those 
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pursuant to sub-division of equity shares and any subsequent allotments, are fully paid-up 
and have been duly listed on the exchange(s). 
The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other statutory requirements with 
respect to listing, ensuring adequate liquidity and transparency for its shareholders. 

Summary Table: Share Capital Movements 

[No. of Equity Amount (2 Particulars G Face Vatue (9 {1700 5 

uthorized Share Capital (before sub- 320,00,000 10 32,0000 
division) 

Authorized Share Capital (after sub-division, 
25th April 2024) 16,00,00,000 2 32,00.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital (as on 
315t March 2024) 8,80,00,000 2 17,60.00 

|Add: Shares issued during the year ~ ~ _ 
(Preferential Allotment / ESOP, if any) 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital (as on 
315t March 2025) 8.80,00,000 2 17,60.00 

5. DETAILS OF LOCK-IN OF SHARES 

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”), the details of lock-in of Equity Shares of the 

Company are as under: 

(i) Lock-in of Minimum Promoters’ Contribution 
Our Promoter, Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav, has given his written consent to Include 
2,45,00,000 equity shares subscribed and held by him as part of the Minimum Promoters’ 
Contribution, constituting 20.42% of the post-issue paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company. 

In terms of Regulation 236(1) read with Regulation 238(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 
2018, the aforesaid shares shall remain locked-in for a period of three (3) years from the date 
of allotment in the Initial Public Offer or the date of commencement of commercial production, 
whichever Is later. 
(ii) Lock-in of Equity Shares held by Promoter in excess of Minimum Promoters’ 

Contribution 
In addition to the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution, the balance 5,39,83,042 equity shares 
held by the Promoter shall remain locked-in for a period of one (1) year from the date of 

allotment in the Initial Public Offer, in accordance with Regulation 238(b) of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, 2018. 
(iii) Lock-in of Equity Shares held by Persons other than the Promoter 
In accordance with Regulation 239 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018, the entire pre-issue 

capital held by persons cther than the Promoter shall remain locked-in for a period of one (1) 
year from the date of allotment in the Initial Public Offer. 
Accordingly, 95,16,958 equity shares held by persons other than the Promoter shall be 

subject to a lock-in of one year. 
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(iv) Summary of Lock-in of Shares 

— No. of Equity | % of Post-Issue [[Lock-in Applicable ‘ 
tegory Shares Capital Period Regulation 

[Promoter (Minimum Reg. 236(1) & Contribution] 2,45.00,000 20.42% 3years 3802) | 

Promoter (Excess 
Contribution) 5,39,83,042 - 1year Reg. 238(b) 

Non-Promoter (Pre- 
LIsmECA ital) 95,16,958 = 1year Reg. 239 

6. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

As on the date of this Report, your Company has two (2) subsidiaries and does not have any 
Joint Venture or Associate Company within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, The details of subsidiaries are as follows: 

1. Arawali Phosphate Limited (APL) 
Arawall Phosphate Limlted (CIN: U14212RJ1996PLC011667) is a Public Limited Company 
incorporated in Rajasthan and is engaged in the manufacture of Single Super Phosphate 

(SSP) Fertilizers with an installed capacity of 66,000 MT per annum, 

Your Company acquired a controlling stake in APL in June 2022, and presently holds 
39,08,206 equity shares, representing 82.67% of the paid-up equity share capital. 

Accordingly, APL is a subsidiary of the Company. 

Financial Highlights (% in lakhs) 

Particulars | June 30,2024 March 31,2024 || March 31, 2023 
Net Worth I 801.07 727.87 I 342.82 
Total Revenue I 526.05 [ 1363.58 [ 1952.28 

;h':fi‘/ (Eoss):After: 73.21 85.05 91.68 

2. Yara Green Energy Private Limited (YGEPL) 
Yara Green Energy Private Limited (CIN: U35105UP2023PTC180308) was incorporated on 

April 18, 2023, In Uttar Pradesh. The Company is engaged in activities relating to bio-energy, 
gas distribution, fertilizers and food processing, 

Your Company holds 9,999 equity shares (99.99%) of YGEPL, and the balance 1 share is held 
by Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav (Director), making YGEPL a wholly-owned subsidiary. 

Financial Highlights (% in lalhs) 
Particulars Il June 30,2024 | March 31,2024 

Net Worth I 0.80 0.80 

Total Revenue " - | - 

Profit / (Loss) After Tax I - I {0.20) 
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Joint Ventures and Associate Companies 
During the year under review, your Company did not have any Joint Venture or Associate 
Company within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013. 

7. STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'TS 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the 
Company has prepared its Standalone Financial Statements as well as Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

* The Standalone Financlal Statements of the Company give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company on a standalone 
basis. 

* The Consolidated Financlal Statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the relevant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, reflect the financial 
resulis of the Company together with its subsidiaries, thereby providing a holistic view of 
the overall business operations and financial position. 

The audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements, along with the Auditor's 
Reports thereon, form an integral part of this Annual Report. 

Further, pursuant to Section 136 of the Act, the audited financial statements of the subsidiaries 

are placed on the website of the Company at www.apfifn and will be made available to the 
Members on request. 

8. UTILIZATION OF IPO & PREFERENTIAL PROCEEDS 

During the financial year 2024-25, Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited successfully 
completed [ts Initial Public Offering (IPO) and was listed on the National Stock Exchange of 

India (NSE) on January 02, 2025. The Company issued 32,000,000 equity shares of 32/- 
each, aggregating to a total 170 size of 344.8 crore (including share premium). 

The net proceeds from the IPO, after deducting Issue-related expenses, were proposed to be 
utilized for the following objects as stated in the Prospectus, 

Objects of the IPO 
. Expansion of production and manufacturing capacity 

Investment in working capital 
Modernization of infrastructure and R&D facilities 
General corporate purposes 
Issue-related expenses n 
W
 

Utilization of IPO Proceeds: 

Amount (X in 
Sr. No. Particulars 

crore) 

Capital Expenditure towards purchase of Plant & 
1 Machinery and working capital in Anya Polytech & 12.69 

Fertilizers Limited 

etting up new project in Yara Green Energy Private 
imited, subsidiary company, along, with worklng capital 

10.80 
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Sr.No. Particulars A"’::‘;"'é‘ n 

flmquiremmt ] 

3 ‘orking Capital & Capital Expenditure in Arawali 850 
hosphate Limited, subsidiary company 

4 |General corporate purposes® i 8.07 t 

5 |[IPO Issue Expenses | 4.74 
|Net Proceeds ] 44.80 | 

Note: 

Statemenls on the ulilization of IPO proceeds, as required under Regulation 32 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, have been 
periodically submitted to the Stock Exchange and reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

9. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

During the financial year 202425, there has been no change in the nature of business of 

Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited. The Company continues to be engaged primarily in the 
manufacturing and marketing of fertilizers, agro-chemicals, and allied products, as 
stated in its Memorandum of Association. 

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with all applicable regulatory 
provisions and there were no activities outside the scope of the existing business during the 
year under review. 

10.TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, the Board of Directors has approved the 
transfer of amounts to reserves as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in line 
with the company’s financial policy: 

1. Retained Earnings / General Reserve 
1. Net Profit for the year after tax: 3701.41 lakhs (as per Note 50). 
2. An amount of ¥718.62 lakhs has been transferred to Retained Earnings (as 

per Note 24] to strengthen the financial position of the company and to meet 
future business requirements. 

2. Capital Reserve / Revaluation Reserve 
1. Capital Reserve adjustments during the year: 3(-3.69) lakhs (amortization). 
2. Depreciation on revalued assets: 10.24 lakhs, 
3. Revaluation surplus as on 31st March 2025 stands at ¥323.83 lakhs (Note 24). 

3. Securities Premium Account 
1. The company has utilized ¥531.81 lakhs of the Securities Premium to write off 

1PO related expenses. 
2. Remaining balance of ¥3,308.19 lakhs remains in the Securities Premium 

Account. 
4. Total Reserves and Surplus 

1. The total reserves and surplus as on 31st March 2025 are ¥6,181.72 lakhs, 
which includes retained earnings, capital reserve, revaluation surplus, and 

securities premium (Note 24). 
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Purpose of Transfers: 
The transfers to reserves are made to ensure a prudent financial structure, maintain liquidity 
for operations, support expansion plans, and comply with statutory requirements. These 
reserves will also provide a cushion for unforeseen contingencies and future growth of the 
company. 

11.DIVIDEND 

In view of the Company’s financial performance during the year and with a focus on 

conserving resources for future growth initfatives, the Board of Directors has mot 
recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March 2025. 
The Board believes that retaining the earnings will help strengthen the Company’s financial 
position and support its strategic objectives, including capacity expansion, innovation, and 
operational efficiency. 

12.DEPOSITS 

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, the Company has neither accepted nor 
renewed any deposits from the public within the meaning of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 

2013. There are no deposits outstanding as of the year-end. 

‘The Company continues to maintain a strong liquidity position, supported by healthy turnover 
and robust financial performance, ensuring that all its obligations are met on time. The Board 

confirms that the Company Is in compliance with the applicable provislons of the Companles 
Act, 2013, and the related rules concerning deposits. 

13. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March 2025 comprised a mix of Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors, bringing a diverse range of expertise in finance, operations, and 

strategic management. 

During the financial year 2024-25, the following changes occurred in the composition of the 
Board and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): 

* Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav continued as the Managing Director, providing strategic 

leadership and operational oversight. 
* Mr. Tej Pal Singh continued as a Director, contributing to strategic guidance and 

operational management. 
* Ms. Liza Sahni continued as an Independent Director, providing guidance in corporate 

governance, compliance, and strategic initiatives. 

* Mr. Vineet Bhatia continued as an Independent Director, providing guidance on risk 
management, business strategy, and policy frameworks. 

* Mr. Anurag Agarwal continued as the Chief Financial Officer, overseeing financial 
planning, reporting, and risk management. 

* Ms. Kavita Rani served as the Company Secretary, ensuring compliance with statutory 
and regulatory requirements; she resigned from the Board on 28th February 2025. 

* Ms. Aayushee Bhatia (M. No. A52545) - Appointed as Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer W.e.f May 01, 2025. 

The Board places strong emphasis on corporate governance, regular performance evaluation, 
and succession planning for its Directors and KMPs. All appointments and reappolntments 
during the year were made in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and 

the Listing Regulations. 
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The Board expresses its sincere appreciation for the valuable contributions made by all 
Directors and KMPs during the year, which supported the Company in achieving its financial 

and strategic objectives, including growth In turnover and operational efficiency. 

14.REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

The Registered Office of Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited is situated at: 

5-2, Level, Upper Ground Floor, Block-E, International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, 
New Delhi - 110019 

All communications, statutory notices, and correspondence relating to the Company may be 
addressed to the Registered Office. The Board ensures that the Reglstered Office Is fully 
equipped to handle all regulatory, legal, and sharcholder-related communications efficiently. 

During the year under review, there has been no change in the registered office address of the 
Company. 

15. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT 

Pursuant to Regulation 76 of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, and 
in line with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Reconclllation of Share Capital 
Audit was carricd out by a Practicing Company Secretary during the financial year 2024-25. 

The audit confirmed that the total issued, subscribed, and paid-up capital of the Company 
matches the aggregate of the wtal number of shares held in physical form and the total 
number of dematerialized shares held with the depositories. 

A certificate confirming the reconciliation of the share capital is submitted regularly to the 
Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed, and a copy of the same is also 
maintained at the Registered Office of the Company. 

The Board confirms that, as on 31st March 2025, the total number of equity shares issued, 
subscribed, and fully paid-up was in full conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, and the Listing Regulations. 

16. DISCLOSURE RELATED TO BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance and 
ensuring transparency, accountability, and fairness in all its operations. The composition, 

functioning, and disclosures relating to the Board of Directors and its committees are in 
compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

(a) Board Composition: 
As on 31st March 2025, the Board comprises a balanced mix of Executive, Non-Executive, and 
Independent Directors, is bringing diverse expertise in finance, operations, strategy, and 
governance. The Board perlodically reviews the composition and effectiveness of its members 

10 ensure alignment with the Company's strategic objectives. 
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(b) Board Committees: 
The Board has constituted the following committees to ensure focused oversight and 
decision-making: 

1. Audit Committee - Oversees {Inancial reporting, internal controls, risk management, and 
statutory compliance. 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee ~ Responsible for evaluating performance, 
succession planning, and recommending remuneration policies for Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMPs). 

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee - Addresses sharcholder grievances and 
ensures smooth communication with investers. 

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee - Formulates and menitors CSR 
initiatives and expenditure. 

() Board Meetings and Attendance: 
During the financial year 2024-25, the Board met 12 times. The meetings were structured to 
review financial performance, strategic initiatives, compliance requirements, and other 
important matters. Attendance of Directors at these meetings and at the previous Annual 
General Meeting is In accordance with statutory requirements. 

(d) Committee Meetings and Attendance 
To ensure effective governance and focused oversight, the Board has constituted various 
committees, each of which met periodically during the financial year 2024-25. The details of 
the committees and attendance of their members are as follows: 

i- Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee oversees financial reporting, internal controls, risk management, and 
statutory compliance. 

DIN Name IDesignation ?;‘;z:fzr)uuw Attended 

10119296 | Ms. Liza Sahni [Chairman 4 

10421861 | Mr. Vineet Bhatia [Member n 
00859217 | Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav___||Member 4 

1. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
Responsible for recommending appointments, evaluating performance, and determining 
remuneration policies for Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs). 

No. of Meetings Attended i 
IN iName Designation (2024-25) 

10119296 | Ms. Liza Sahni J[chairman 4 
10421861 | Mr. Vineet Bhatia |Member Jl& 

06898372 | Mr. Tej Pal Singh [Member la 

ifi. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
Addresses shareholder and investor grievances, ensures timely resolution of complaints, and 
oversees share transfer and dematerialization processes. 

No. of Meetings Attended 
DIN ?hme [Designation (2024-25) | 

10119296 | Ms. Liza Sahni llchairman n 

06898372 | Mr. Te Pal Siugh [[Member 14 

36| ANNUAL REPORT-APFL-2024-25



Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

No. of Meetings Attended 
(2024-25) 

00859217 | Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav [Member ]k 

IDIN ‘Name Designation 

All committee meelings were conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the Secretarial Standards. The requisite quorum was present at all 

meetings, and the recommendations of the committees were placed before the Board for 
constderation and approval. 

iv. Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

Formulates, monitors, and evaluates CSR initiatives and expenditure of the Corapany. 

DIN ‘Name \Designation :‘;&2:{2';)““@ Atteidedy 

00859217 | Mr. Yashpal Singh Yadav Chairman |1 
06898372 | Mr. Te] Pal Singh |[Member 1 
10119296 ||Ms. Liza Sahni [Member I 

(e) Independent Directors: 

Independent Directors have confirmed their adherence to the Code of Conduct prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. They bring objective judgment to 
Board deliberations, particularly on matters relating to strategy, risk, and compliance. 

*  Meeting of Independent Directors 
In accordance with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of the 
Independent Directors was held on March 24, 2025, without the presence of Non- 
Independent Directors and members of management. 

During me meetlng, the Independent Directors: 
Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a 

whole; 
2. Assessed the performance of the Executive Director, considering feedback from 

other Board members; 
3. Evaluated the quality, quantity, and timeliness of information flow between the 

Company management and the Board, necessary for the effective discharge of 
thelr dutfes. 

All Independent Directors were present at the meeting. The observations and feedback from 
this meeting were placed before the Board and have been duly implemented. 

*  Declaration by Independent Directors 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
received declarations from all Independent Directors confirming that: 

*  They meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act 
and applicable rules; 

*  Theyare not disqualified from continuing as Independent Directors; 

* They are enrolled in the Independent Directors’ Data Bank maintained by the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) in accordance with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, 
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(f) Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
‘The Company has formulated a Familiarization Programme to enable Independent Directors 
to gain a comprehensive understanding of their roles, rights, responsibilities, and the business 
environment in which the Company operates. 

‘The programme covers: 

*  An overview of the Company’s operations, business model, and strategic priorities; 
* Industry dynamics, market trends, and the regulatory environment; 

* Key policies, procedures, and corporate governance practices of the Company. 

During the year under review, there were no significant changes in the Company's business 
operations, verticals, structure, or strategy that necessitated a revision of the familiarization 
programme. 

(g) Annual Evaluation of Performance of the Board, Committees, and Directors 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has established a structured 
framework for the annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees, and individual 
Directors, in accordance with the provisions of the Corapanies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR). 

For Independent Directors, the evaluation framework focuses on: 

* Key attributes and contributions that justify their continued presence on the Board; 

*  Active participation in Board and Committee proceedings; 
* Effectiveness in decision-making and providing strategic direction. 

The evaluation process was conducted through a structured questionnaire designed by the 

NRC, covering various aspects such as governance, engagement, decision-making, and 
interpersonal relationships. The responses and observations of the Directors were analysed to 
assess the overall effectiveness of the Board, its Committees, and individual Directors. 

Key insights and suggestions arising from the evaluation were discussed by the Board and 
implemented to enhance Board functioning, governance standards, and strategic decision- 
making. 

(h) Corporate Governance Compliance: 
The Company has implemented a robust framework for corporate governance, including: 

* Timely disclosure of financial and operational performance. 
* Ensuring protection of shareholder rights. 
*  Regular review of compliance with regulatory requirements. 

*  Performance evaluation of the Board, its commiltees, and individual directors. 

The Company continues to uphold principles of integrity, transparency, and accountability in 

its dealings with shareholders, employees, and other stakeholders. A detailed report on 
corporate governance, including the management discussion and analysis, forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

17. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism, in the form of a Whistle Blower Policy, in line 

with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companles Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Policy aims to provide a 
secure and confidential channel for Directors, employees, and other stakeholders to report 
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genuine concerns regarding unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the 
Company's Code of Conduct. 

Key Features of the Policy: 
1. Reporting Mechanism: Employees and stakeholders can report concerns directly to the 

Ethics & Compliance Officer or the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. Reports can be 
made through emall, dedicated telephone line, or in writing. 

2. Confidentiality: All disclosures are treated with the highest level of confidentiality. The 
identity of the whistle-blower is protected and disclosure is strictly prohibited except as 
requlied by law. 

3. Investigation Process: The Audit Committee oversees the investigation of complaints 
reported under the Policy. The Committee ensures impartiality. transparency, and timely 

resolution of all reported matters. 
4. Protection against Retaliation: The Pollcy safeguards whistle-blowers from retaliation, 

discrimination, or harassment for reporting genuine concerns in good faith. 
5. Reporting to the Board: The Audit Committee periodically reviews and reports to the 

Board on the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism and status of complaints recelved and 
resolved. 

‘The Board of Directors affirms that no employee or Director has been denied access to the 

Audit Committee under this Policy. During the financial year 2024-25, all reported complaints 
were thoroughly investigated, and appropriate corrective actions were implemented where 
required. 
The Vigil Mechanisr / Whistle Blower Policy is available on the Company's website [insert 
URL], ensuring transparency and easy access for all stakeholders, 

18. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Initia] Public Offering (1P0) Completion 

* The Company’s IPQ, initiated during December 2024, culminated In the allotment of 
shares, and it was successfully listed on the NSE SME platform on 2nd January 
2025. 

* The IPO proceeds were received subsequent to the financial year-end and were 
reflected in the share capital and securities premium in the financial statements. 

*  As the financial impact of the IPO was already recognized, no further adjustments to 
the financial statements for FY 2024-25 are required. 

« This event Is consldered non-adjusting under Ind AS 10, but is disclosed to provide 

users of the financial statements with relevant information. 

19. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 
Directors of Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
hereby confirm that: 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures, if any; 
b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
50 as 10 give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
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Act, 2013, [or safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
€) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 

operating effectively; 
) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

20. SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited did not receive any 
slgnificant or matertal orders from regulators or courts that could have an adverse impact on 
the Company's operations or financial position. 

‘The Company remains committed to maintaining the highest standards of regulatory 
compliance and corporate governance. All applicable statutory requirements and regulatory 
directives have been complied with in a timely and efficient manner. 

21. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

In terms of the Regulation 34(2)(e) and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion & Analysis 

Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 Is annexed herewith as Annexure-A to this report. 

22. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The statement containing the names and other particulars of the employees of the Company as 
required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, is set out in Annexure - B to this report. 

23. AUDITORS 

The matters related to Auditors and their Reports are as under: 

a. Statutory Auditor 
M/s Jerath & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company at the 11" Annual General Meeting for a term of 5 (five) years, subject to ratification 
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Statutory Auditors have audited the financial statements of the Company for the flnancial 
year ended 31st March 2025 and have issued their report with unmodified opinfon. The Board 
has duly reviewed the observations made by the Auditors and has taken necessary actions to 

address the recommendations. 
b. Auditors’ Report 
The Statutory Auditors of the Company, M /s |erath & Co., Chartered Accountants, have audited 

the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2025. 

Key Highlights of the Statutory Auditors’ Report: 

1. Opinion on Financial Statements: 
‘The Auditors have expressed an unmodified (clean) opinion on the financial statements, 

confirming that the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affalrs of the 
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Company as at 31st March 2025, and of the profit and cash lows for the year ended on 
that date, in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act, 
2013. 

2. Compliance: 
The Auditors have confirmed that the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Companles Act, 2013 and other applicable laws relating to accounting records and 
disclosure requirements. 

3. Observations / Recommendations: 
The Auditors have provided certain observations and suggestions to further strengthen 
internal controls. financial reporting and compliance mechanisms. The Board, in 

consultation with the Audit Cominittee, has reviewed these recominendations and taken 
necessary corrective measures. 

4. Emphasis of Matter: 

There are no material qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks In the Statutory 
Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2024-25. 

The Board expresses its appreciation for the guidance and support extended by the Statutory 
Auditors, which has contributed to ensuring transparency, compliance, and reliability in the 
Company's financial reporting. 

. Secretarial Auditor 
In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board appointed M/s Sanket 
Jain & Co., Company Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024~ 
25. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of the Annual Report. 
d. Secretarial Audit Report 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 
Company appointed M/s Sanket Jain & Co., Company Secretaries, (Membership No. A26531, CP 
No. 12583), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024~25. 

The Secretarial Audit was conducted in the prescribed Form No. MR-3, examining compliance 
with the applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and guidelines. The report covers: 

1. Compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
2. Compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

3. Malntenance of proper records, statutory registers, and documentation as required under 
law. 

4. Adherence to governance and corporate compliance requirements. 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2024-25 Is annexed as Annexure - C 
and forms an integral part of this Annual Report. 

‘The Board has reviewed the observations and recommendations made by the Secretarial 
Audttor and has ensured that appropriate actions were taken for strengthening compliance 
and governance practices across the Company. 
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24. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies 

{Cost Records and Audlt) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to malntain cost records for 
certain products manufactured by it 
‘The Board confirms that the Company has maintained proper cost records as prescribed under 
the applicable rules. These records are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure accuracy and 
compliance with statutory requirements. 
‘The Company has also appointed M/s Yash Sardana & Associates. Cost Accountants (Firm 

Registration No. 101497), to conduct the Cost Audit for the financial year 2024-25. The Cost 
Audit report will be submitted to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, as mandated under law. 
‘The maintenance of cost records and the periodic audit help the Company in: 
* Monitoring cost efficiency and operational performance. 
* Ensuring adherence to regulatory requirements, 

* Providing management with reliable information for decision-making, budgeting, and cost 

control. 

25. ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
prepared the Annual Return for the financlal year 2024-25. The Annual Return provides a 
comprehensive overview of the Company’s shareholding pattern, Board composition, Key 
Managerial Personnel, and other statutory disclosures. 

The Annual Return has been uploaded on the Company’s website and can be accessed at: 

wwywapilin 

The Board confirms that the Annual Return accurately reflects the details as on the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025 and is in compliance with the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the SEEI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

26. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Board of Directors of Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited places high emphasis on 
maintaining a robust system of internal financial contrels to ensure the integrity, reliability, 
and accuracy of the Company’s financial reporting. 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has designed and implemented adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, in line with Section 134(5)(e) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations. These controls are designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding: 

* The orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to the Company's 
policies and procedures; 

* The safeguarding of assets and prevention and detection of frauds and errors; 
*  The accuracy and completeness of accounting records; and 

*  The timely preparation of reliable financial statements. 

The internal financial control systems are periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee and 
the Board, and Independent audits are conducted by the Statutory Auditors to ensure thelr 
effectiveness. 
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Based on the evaluation carried out, the Board confirms that the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting are adequate and operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025. 

27. RISK MANAGEMENT 

‘The Company recognizes that effective risk management is integral to achieving its strategic 
objectives and sustaining long-term growth. Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited has 
established a structured framework to identify, assess, and mitigate risks across its operations. 

Risk Management Framework: 
* The Company has a Risk Management Policy approved by the Board, which defines the 

approach for risk identification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigation. 
* Key operational, financial, regulatory, and strategic risks are periodically reviewed by 

the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee. 

* Risk owners are designated within the organization to monitor risk indicators and 
implement mitigation plans. 

Key Risks Identified: 

* Market and Industry Risks: Fluctuations in raw material prices, changes in fertilizer 
demand, and industry competition. 

* Financial Risks: Liquidity, credit, and interest rate risks affecting capital management 

and funding operations. 
* Regulatory Risks: Compliance with environmental, safety, labor, and corporate 

regulations. 

* Operational Risks: Disruptions in supply chain, production inefficiencies, and 
technology-related risks. 

Mitigation Measures: 

*  Diversiflcation of suppliers and raw materials sourcing. 
*  Regular monitoring of financial performance and maintaining prudeat capital structure. 

* Adherence to regulatory compliance through continuous monitoring and internal 
audits. 

* Investment in operational efficiency, technology upgrades, and employee training. 

The Board belleves that this proactive approach enables the Company to minimize potential 
adverse impacts while leveraging opportunities for sustainable growth. 

28. VARIOUS POLICIES OF THE COMPANY 

The Company has adopted and implemented a range of policies to ensure robust governance, 
regulatory compliance, and alignment with its strategic objectives. These policies are 

perfodically reviewed and updated by the Board to reflect best practices and changing 
regulatory requirements. 

1. Risk Management Policy 

i.  Establishes a framework for Identifying, evaluating, and mitigating risks across the 
organization, 

ii. Defines responsibilities of the Board, management, and risk owners in monitoring and 

addressing potential risks. 
2. Whistle Blower / Vigil Mechanism Policy 

iii. Provides a channel for employees, directors, and stakeholders to report unethical 
behaviour, violations of Company policy, or any instances of misconduct. 
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iv. Ensures protection against victimization for those raising concerns in good faith, 
3. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy 

v. Outlines the Company's commitment to social, environmental, and community 
development Initiatives. 

vi. Defines the framework for selection, implementation, and monitoring of CSR projects 
in line with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

4. Related Party Transactions Policy 
vii. Governs transactions with related parties to ensure faimess, transparency, and 

compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

5. Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
viii.Specifies the criteriz for appointment, reappointment, and remuneration of Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs), and senior management. 
ix. Ensures alignment of remuneration with performance and Company objectives. 

6. Insider Trading and Code of Conduct Policy 
X. Prohibits trading in Company securities by insiders based on unpublished price- 

sensitive Information. 
xi. Ensures compliance with SEEI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

7. Policy for Determination of Material Subsidiaries 

xXil. Establishes criteria for identifylng and monitoring material subsidiaries, In 
compliance with SEBI Listing Regulations. 

8. Policy on Preservation of Documents 
xlii.Provides guidelines for maintaining, archiving, and safely disposing of Company 

records In line with statutory requirements, 
9. Policy on Familiarization of Independent Directors 

xiv. Ensures Independent Directors are adequately familiarized with the Company's 

operations, business model, regulatory framework, and key policies for informed 
decision-making. 

The Board periedically reviews these policies to ensure they remain effective, relevant, and in 
line with statutory requirements and corporate governance best practices. 

29. LOANS, INVESTMENTS, AND GUARANTEES 

1. Investments 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company continued to make strategic investments in 
its subsidiaries and other entities to support growth and expansion. The details of 
investments are as follows: 

Name of the Entity |[ Number of Shares || % Holding || Amount (2 Lakhs) 
Arawali Phosphate Limited || 39,08,206 |[83% |[533.41 
Yara Green Energy PvtLtd || 1,08,09,399 |[ 100% [ 1081.00 

Polyfirm Packaging Pvt Ltd || 12,00,000 [ 60% 120.00 
Total = [— 1734.41 

Key Highlights: 

* The Company acquired additional shares in Yara Green Energy Pvt Ltd, achieving 100% 
ownership. 

e Fresh investment of ¥ 120 Lakhs was made in Polyfirm Packaging Pvt Ltd to acquire 
60% stake. 
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2. Loans and Advances 
The Company has extended loans and advances to its subsidiaries and other parties to 
support their working capital and operational requirements. 

A) Loans to Subsidiaries 
Subsidiary " Amount (% Lakhs) 

Arawali Phosphate Limited |[_198061 
Yara Green Energy Pyt Ltd 262.87 

Polyfirm Packaging Pvt Ltd 1201.29 

Total 344476 

B) Loans and Advances to Other Parties 

= Loans and advances to other parties amounted to ¥ 598.50 Lakhs. 

« Certain loans are interest-free and are provided primarily for business purposes. 

C) Loans to Directors 

*  The Company had outstanding loans and imprest balances with certain Directors, as per 
the provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 and applicable regulations. 

3. Guarantees and Security Provided 

* The Company has provided corporate guarantees and securities to banks and financial 
institutions for borrowings availed by its subsidiaries. 

* Loans and borrowings are generally secured by hypothecation of assets including plant 
& machinery, vehicles, and current assets. 

e Cash credit, overdraft, and term loan facilities are secured by both movable and 
immovable assets of the Company and its subsidiaries as per the sanctioned 
agreements. 

4. Compliance 
All loans, investments, and guarantees given during the financial year are in compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the Company’s internal policies. 

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has entered into transactions with its related 
parties in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis, in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Company’s related parties include its subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates, key 

managerial personnel (KMP), their relatives, and eatities in which KMP or their relatives have 
significant influence. 

All related party transactions were approved by the Audit Committec in accordance with the 
Company's policy on Related Party Transactions. There are no transactions that are prejudicial 
to the interests of the Company. The details of transactions with related parties are as follows: 

45| ANNUAL REPORT-APFL-2024-25



Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

Name of Related Party  |[Nature of Transaction |Amount (3) g:f::‘;‘“’"m 

wali Phosphate Ltd Loans and Advances 1980.61 1980.61 
‘ara Green Energy Pvt Ltd_|[Loans and Advances |[262.87 |262.87 

Polyfirm Packaging Pvt Ltd [Loans and Advances |[1201.29 |l1z01.29 
ey Managerial Personnel |Remunemfinn & Benefits |87.50 l— 

P Purchase of 
ISubsidiaries & Others (Goods/Services |945.75 12530 

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188 of 
the Companles Act, 2013 are provided In the prescribed Form AOC-2, which Is annexed as 
Annexure E to this Report. 

31. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Conservation of Energy: 
Since the operations of the Company are not energy-intensive, the Company has not consumed 
energy at any significant level. Accordingly, no specific measures were taken for energy 
conservation, and no additional investment was made for the reduction of energy 

consumption. 

Particulars 
| Details | 

| Not applicable due to non-energy-| 
intensive operations 

Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy l Not applicable 

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy 

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment. I Nil 

Technology Absorption, Adaptation, and Innovation: 
The operations of the Company do not involve any special technology. Therefore, there is no 
requirement for efforts towards technology absorption, adaptation, or innovation. 

Particulars | Details 

Efforts made towards technology absorption, 

adaptation, and innovation | Novapplicable 

Benefits derived eg., product improvement, cost| | 
reduction, product development, import substitution Notapplicable 

Technology Imported during the last three years | Not applicable 

Year of import Not applicable 

Has technology been fully absorbed | Notapplicable 

Areas nol absorbed, reasons and future plans Nol applicable 

Expenditure Incurred on Research and Development | Nil 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

‘The Company has no forelgn exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review. 
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32. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (the “Act”), Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited has 

adopted a policy for the prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment of women 
at the workplace, The Company is committed to providing a safe, secure, and respectful 
environment to all employees, free from any form of sexual harassment. 

In compliance with the Act: 

* The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (1CC) to deal with 
complaints related to sexual harassment at the workplace. 

*  Awareness programmes and sensitization workshops were conducted during the year 
to educate employees about the previsions of the Act and the Company’s policy. 

*  Adequate facilities have been provided to the ICC to effectively discharge its duties. 

o The Company has displayed relevant guidelines and rules regarding the prevention of 
sexual harassment at prominent places in the workplace. 

Status during FY 2024-25: 

*  Number of complaints received: Nil 

¢ Number of complaints disposed of: Nil 
*  Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2025: Nil 

The Company reaffirms its strong commitment to ensuring a workplace environment built on 
dignity, equality, and mutual respect, where every individual can contribute productively and 
without fear. 

33. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The disclosure requirements prescribed under Para C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR") are not applicable 
to the Company pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI LODR, as the Company is listed on 
the SME Exchange. 

34. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Company 
was required to spend a certain amount towards CSR activities during the year. The details are 
asunder: 

For the year || Forthe year | Fortheyear | For the year 

Particulars ended ended ended ended 
31.03.2025 || 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Amount required to be 
spent by the Company || 0.00 4.06 0.00 0.00 
during the year 

Amount of expenditure < 
Sisitad 0.00 6.50 0.00 0.00 

Shortfall / (Excess) at 
the end of the year 0.00 (2.44) 0.00 0.00 
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Total of previous years' 
shortfall 

Reasons for shortfall NA | NA NA NA 

Detalls of related party 
transactions, if any (e.g., 
contribution to a trust NA NA NA NA 

controlled by related 

party) 
Provision with respect 
to Hablility incurred by 

entering into any NA NA NA NA 
contractual obligation 
relating to CSR 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

* During FY 2023-24, the Company spent ¥6.50 lakhs against the requirement of 34.06 
lakhs, thereby resulting in an excess spend of ¥2.44 lakhs, which has been carried 
forward for set-off in subsequent years in accordance with Rule 7(3) of the CSR Rules. 

*  For FY 2024-25, no CSR obligation arose, hence no expenditure was incurred. 

35. DETAILS OF APPLICATIONS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

During the financial year 202425, no application was made by or against Anya Polytech & 
Fertilizers Limited under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, and 
no proceedings are pending under the said Code as on the date of this report. 

36. LISTING OF SHARES 

As of the fiscal year 202425, Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited had its shares listed on the 
NSE Emerge platform following its Initial Public Offering (IPO) that concluded on December 
30, 2024. The IPO opened on December 26, 2024, with a price band of 313-314 per share and 
a lot size of 10,000 shares. The listing occurred on January 2, 2025, at ¥17.10 per share, 
reflecting a 22.14% premium over the issue price. 

37. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

The Equity Shares of the Company are tradable only in electronic form in accordance with the 
provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996. The Corapany has entered into tripartite agreements 
with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL), along with its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) - M/s Skyline 
Financial Services Private Limited - to facilitate the dematerialization of shares. 

As on March 31, 2025, 100% of the Company’s total paid-up Equity Share Capital was held in 
dematerialized form and 0% In physical form. The Company’s ISIN Is INE0SI601032. 

The Board advises all shareholders holding shares in physical form (if any in future issuance) 
to dematerialize their holdings to ensure easy liquidity, better transferabllity, and to be in line 
with SEBI directives, which mandate trading in dematerialized form only. 
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38. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company hereby confirms that it has complied with all the applicable provisions of 
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards 
on General Meetings (S5-2), as issued by the Institute of Company Secretarics of India (ICS), 
during the financial year 2024-25. 

39. GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting Is required in respect of the following 
items, as there were no transactions or activities pertaining to these matters during the 
financial year 2024-25: 

a. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting, or otherwise; 
b. Instances with respect to voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the 

Company; 
c. Neither the Executive Director nor the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company 
receives any remuneration or commission from any other company; 

d. There is no requirement to disclose a web link of the policy for determining ‘material’ 
subsidiaries, as the Company had no subsidiaries during the financial year 2024-25. 

42. ENCLOSURES 

The following annexures form an integral part of this Board Report for the Financial Year 

2024-25: 
a. Annexure-A: Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
b. Annexure-B: Particulars of Employees 
<. Annexure-C: Secrelarlal Auditor’s Report in Form No. MR-3 
d. Annexure-D: AOC-2 (Details of Related Party Transactions) 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
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Managing Director Director 
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Date: 28.08.2025 
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49| ANNUAL REPORT-APFL-2024-25



ANYA 
INSTAPRO 

ANYA 
INSTAPRO 

ANYA 
INSTAPRO 

i
l
 

MARKETED BY: 

Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Pvt. Ltd. 

INSTAPRO 
SULPHAR WDG (90% W/W) 

FERTILIZER 

o 5 
“@s 

m
e
r
 

O
Y
d
V
1
I
S
N
I
 
V
A
N
Y
 

O
¥
d
V
L
S
N
I
 
V
A
N
V
 

O
¥
d
V
L
I
S
N
I
 
V
A
N
Y
 



FERTIGRO 

fadeare:. 
1, 5T FERTIGRO THe A Feww & ol B Tt £1 
2T FERTIGRO ¥ deaatagfammard| 
3. e el sereitopor e evar 1 
3. N1 FERTIGRO faere wwat # dat &t v, zemet 
et f W7 6w @ ufin, o, e, fr g 

IR I P H ST Bt € 
&, v o peeren ¥ R o ey o S A fE awen 
L] 
5. St e s e aaman ) 
6. RN FERTIGRO Wt menm as el sz 1 
7. e daftaerafi ot aem ) 

i faf - 
1. XFRI FERTIGRO W 279 3 i wwat 3Kg Wid vws 1 
w L T i i Lol 
2. ¥R FERTIGRO & weweTgar Wity fiyem a fiw 
Al 

- 
T, A, s, S, e, e, WG, 7, S, e 
G A W AT 4 e e | 

Marketed By: 
Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Pvt. Ltd. (APFL) 

@ UPSIDC industrial Area, Village Keshurehai, 

Shahjahanpur- 242001, U. 
= Website : wwwapflin Kisan Helpline : 05842-295813 

Fax: 0720-4159498. Email : contact@apfiin 



ANNEXURE - & 
MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION AND 

ANALYSIS REPORT



Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year 2024-25 

provides an overview of the business environment, operational performance, financial 

‘Thighlights, opportunities, risks, and outlook for Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited. 

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

Global growth is projected to slow from 3.5% in 2022 to 3.0% in 2023 and 2.9% in 2024. 

For advanced economies, growth is expected to decline from 2.6% in 2022 to 1.5% in 2023 
and 1.4% in 2024, reflecting strong US momentum but weaker growth in the Euro area. 
Emerging markets and developing economies are projected to grow modestly, from 4.1% In 
2022 to 4.0% in 2023 and 2024, with a slight downward revision in 2024 due to China’s 
property sector crisis. 

Medium-term global growth forecasts stand at 3.1%, the lowest in decades, (ndicating weak 
prospects for countries to catch up to higher living standards. 

The global economy {n FY 2024-25 witnessed a mixed recovery trajectory, marked by regional 
divergences in growth and continuing macroeconomic challenges. Advanced economies saw 
moderate expansion, while emerging markets demonstrated resilience amid global headwinds. 

Key factors influencing the global economic environment included tight monetary policles by 
central banks to control inflation, geopolitical tensions, and supply chain realignments. 

Commodity markets remained volatile, with fluctuations in crude oil, natural gas, and key 
agricultural (nputs lmpacting global trade dynamics. Inflationary pressures, though easing in 
some regions, continued to affect input costs, particularly in energy-intensive and raw 
material-dependent industries such as fertilizers and petrochemicals. 

Developing countries, including India, benefited from strong domestic demand, infrastructure 
investments, and government policy support. However, global uncertainty, coupled with rising 
interest rates and currency fluctuations, posed challenges for international trade and capital 
flows. 

For Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, the global economic conditions translated into both 
opportunities and challenges. While input cost volatility and logistics disruptions had an 

impact, the Company effectively navigated these conditions through strategic sourcing, 
operational efficiency, and market diversification efforts. 

GLOBAL INFLATION 

Global headline inflation is forecast to decline steadily from 8.7% in 2022 to 6.9% in 2023 
and 5.8% in 2024, though the 2023 and 2024 forecasts have been revised upward slightly. 
Inflation Is generally expected to return to target by 2025 in most economies. 

By the second quarter of 2023, global headline inflation had fallen from a peak of 11.6% in Q2 
2022 to 5.3%, with most of the reduction driven by declines in energy and, to a lesser 
extent, food prices. Among major economies, headline inflation in Q2 2023 ranged from - 
0.1% in China, 2.8% in the Euro area, to 2.7% in the United States. 
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GROWTH IN EMERGING ECONOMIES 
* Emerging and developing Asia: Growth projected at 5.2% in 2023, declining Lo 4.8% 

in2024. 

*  China: Growth forecast revised downward to 5.0% in 2023 and 4.2% in 2024, mainly 
due to a property market crisis and lower investment. 

* India: Growth projected at 6.3% for both 2023 and 2024, with an upward revision of 

0.2 percentage peints for 2023, reflectling stronger-than-expected consumption 
during April-june. 

Desplte some signs of resilience, global economic activity remains below prepandemic 
projections, especially in emerging markets and low-income countries, where output 
losses average more than 6.5% compared with prepandemic expectations. 

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

According to the World Bank, India was one of the fastest-growing major economies in FY 
2022-23, with a growth rate of 7.2%, the second-highest among G20 countries and nearly 
twice the average for emerging market economies. This resilience was driven by robust 

domestic demand, strong public infrastructure investment, and a strengthening financial 
sector. 

Strong economic expansion during the initial quarter of FY 2023 allowed India to surpass the 
United Kingdom, becoming the fifth-largest global economy and successfully rebounding from 
the adverse effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the World Bank warns that giobal 
headwinds—including high interest rates, geopolitical tensions, and sluggish demand—are 

expected to persis. In this context, India’s GDP growth for FY 2023-24 is projected at 6.3%. 

The Indian economy continued its recovery and expansion through FY 202425, driven by 
strong macroeconomic fundamentals, policy support, and sustained domestic demand. Key 

sectors such as agriculture, manufacturing, and Infrastructure registered steady performance, 
supported by favourable monsoons, robust rural consumption, and increased public 
investment, 

The agriculture and allied sectors, in particular, remained resilient, underpinned by improved 
sowing patterns, better irrigation coverage, and government-led initiatives to promote 
sustainable and climate-resilient farming practices. This environment has had a direct and 
positive influence on the fertilizer and agrochemical industries, with demand for both 
conventional and specialty fertilizers witnessing consistent growth. 

In line with natonal priorities around food security, soil health, and productivity 
enhancement, the sector is transitioning from volume-based to value-driven inputs. Farmers 
are showing an increased preference for customized nutrient solutions, organic blends, and 
micronutrient-rich formulations. Moreover, rising awareness of balanced fertilization and 
sustainable farming techniques is shaping a more informed and quality-conscious customer 
base. 

Compared to developed markets, India continues to offer strong growth potential, especially 
due to: 

e Avast cultivable land base 
o Alarge and diverse farming population 

*  Low per-hectare fertilizer usage, leaving room for expansion 
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However, the industry also faces persistent challenges, Key operational pressures stem {rom: 

»  Volatile raw material prices (especially imports like phosphates and potash)High 
*  and energy costs 

* Regulatory fluctuations around subsidy disbursements and nutrient-based pricing 
schemes 

The policy environment, including the continuation of the Nutrient-Based Subsidy (NBS) 

scheme and new initiatives to promote organic and bio-ferulizers, remains a significant 
determinant of industry dynamics. Increased digital penetration in rural India and the 
promotion of agri-tech solutions have further encouraged the adoption of digital advisory 
platforms, e-commerce-based fertilizer sales, and real-time soll health monitoring. 

In this context, businesses like Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited must remain strategically 
agile—balancing cost management with fnnovation and capacity expansion, Focus areas for 
sustainable growth include: 

Backward integration for key raw materlals 

Digital and data-driven farmer engagement 

I[nvestment in R&D for high-efficiency fertilizers 
Geographical expansion into underpenetrated agri-zones, particularly In Eastern and 
North-Eastern India. 

With the government's continued emphasis on doubling farmer incomes and improving 
agricultural productivity, the long-term outlook for the Indian fertilizer and agrochemical 
industry remains promising. 

According to the World Bank, India was one of the fastest-growing major economies in FY 
2022-23, with a growth rate of 7.2%, the second-highest among G20 countries and nearly 
twice the average for emerging market economies. This resilience was driven by robust 
domestic demand, strong public infrastructure investment, and a strengthening financial 
sector. 

The Indian economy demonstrated strong resilience and continued its growth trajectory 
during the financial year 2024-25, supported by robust domestic demand, Infrastructure 
development, and structural reforms, According to government estimates and independent 

economic assessments, India remained one of the fastest-growing major economies globally, 
with GDP growth estimated at around [insert % if available, e.g, 6.8%] for the year. 
Key sectors such as agriculture, manufacturing, and services witnessed positive momentum. 
The government's sustained focus on rural development, digital infrastructure, Make in India 

initfatives, and Increased capital expenditure contributed to inclusive growth and employment 
generation. 

Inflatienary trends, although present, were managed through calibrated monetary policies by 

the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Additionally, stable macroeconomic Indicators, improved tax 
collections, and enhanced investor confidence strengthened the economic environment. 
For Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, the favorable domestic economic climate provided a 
strong foundation for business growth. Increased agricultural activity, enhanced rural 

spending, and supportive government schemes for the fertilizer sector helped boost demand 
for the Company’s products. The Company continues to align its strategy with natienal 
priorities, including sustainable agriculture, self-reliance in fertilizer production, and 
enhanced supply chaln efficlency. 
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INDIAN ECONOMIC GROWTH DRIVERS 

As per the Economic Survey 2022-23, India’s growth in FY 2022-23 was primarily driven by 
private consumption and capital formation, which also contributed to employment generation, 
reflected in declining urban unemployment and faster Employee Provident Fund registrations. 

Key factors supporting India’s economic prospects include: 
1. Limited global fallout from COVID-19 in China: Minimal health and economic Impacts 

have allowed the normalization of global supply chains, benefiting India. 
2. Inflationary impulses from China’s reopening: Supporting export competitiveness and 

trade stability. 
3. Recessionary tendencies in major advanced economies: Monetary easing In these 

economies has led to capital inflows into India, facilitated by a stable domestic inflation 
rate below 6%. 

4. Emhanced Private Sector Investment: Improved business sentiment has spurred private 
sector investment. 
Additionally, robust credit growth to MSMEs, averaging over 30.6% from January to 
November 2022, was supported by the Emergency Credit Linked Guarantee Scheme 
(ECLGS). 
Significant capital expenditure (Capex) by the central government, which rose by 63.4% 
in the first eight months of FY 2022-23, has further catalyzed private sector investment 
and stimulated economie activity. 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

The Indian fertilizer and agrochemical industry Is undergoing a transformative phase— 
transitioning from traditional volume-driven operations to a more technology-enabled, 
precision-oriented, and sustainability-focused ecosystem. Once viewed primarily as a provider 
of essentfal farm Inputs, the industry now plays a crucial role in the broader agricultural 
productivity and food security narrative, Today's stakeholders—from policymakers to 
farmers—expect fertilizers not just to nourish crops, but to do so efficiently, responsibly, and 

sustainably. 

This sector now encompasses a wide spectrum of products and services, including NPK 

fertilizers, micronutrients, bio fertilizers, water-soluble variants, and agronomic advisory 
services, Fertilizer companies are evolving into agri-input solution providers, offering tailored 
nutrient programs, soil health diagnostics, and digital farming tools that empoewer farmers to 
optimize yield while protecting long-term soil fertility. 

A defining characteristic of this evolution is the rise of “smart agriculture”—a shift driven by 
a new generation of progressive farmers seeking data-driven, environmentally friendly, and 

economically viable farming practices. These farmers, particularly in Tier II and Tier 1II 
towns and peri-urban areas, are increasingly adopting digital platforms for crop advisory, 
product procurement, and weather-linked decision-making. 

The rural economy, bolstered by government initiatives like PM-KISAN, direct benefit 
transfers, and investments in irrigation and infrastructure. continues to support fertilizer 
demand. Simultaneously, urbanization and shrinking landholdings are nudging Indian 
agriculture toward Intensive cultivation, where nutrient management becomes even more 
critical. 

Parallelly, the organic and sustainable agriculture movement is gaining momentum, Growing 
consumer demand for chemical-free produce has led to a surge in the use of bio fertilizers, 
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compost-based solutions, and soil-enriching microbial products. This trend is not limited to 
large farms—it is increasingly visible among smallholders, horticulturists, and even urban 
farmers. 

‘The industry's reach is expanding not just geographically but demographically. Young farmers 
and agri-entrepreneurs, supported by start-ups and digital platforms, are emerging as a 
significant force—experimenting with crop diversification, soll mapping and integrated 
nutrient management (INM) programs. These stakeholders are influencing the market with 
their openness to innovation and strong environmental consciousness. 

However, challenges remain. The industry continues to grapple with volatility in global raw 
material prices, regulatory compliance, and subsidy-related delays, which can affect pricing 

and liquidity. Environmental concerns around fertilizer overuse have also led to increased 
regulatory scrutiny, placing a premium on efficiency, traceabllity, and responsible marketing 

practices. 

In this shifting landscape, companies like Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited are well- 
positioned to capitalize on both current and emerging opportunities. By aligning with national 
agricultural goals, investing in R&D, promoting farmer education, and leveraging digital 

infrastructure, the company aims to lead the next phase of growth—where agriculture is not 
Just about productivity, but about profitability, sustainability, and resilience. 
From high-efficiency fertilizers to integrated crop nutrition programs, the fertilizer industry is 
no longer just about supplying nutrients—it is about enabling prosperity from soil to shelf. 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: OPPORTUNITIES 

In the dynamic and rapidly evolving landscape of [ndia’s agriculture and agri-input sector. 
the future holds immense opportunities for innovation, expansion, and transformation. For 
Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, the key to sustained growth lies in embracing 
customization, digitalization, and sustainability—three pillars reshaping the fertilizer and 
agrochemical industry today. 

1. Customization and Precision Farming 
Modern Indian farmers are increasingly shifting from generic input usage to need-based 
nutrient management. This shift presents a strong opportunity for companies to offer 
customized fertilizer blends, crop-specific nutrient packages, and soil health-driven 
advisory services. 

By leveraging technologies such as: 

*  Soil health diagnostics 
* Geo-tagging and farm mapping 

= Al-based crop advisory 

Anya Pelytech can provide personalized crop nutrition programs, ensuring optimal yield 
while preserving soil fertility. This tailored approach not only improves farmer outcomes but 
builds deeper engagement and long-term loyalty. 

2. Digital Transformation and Farmer Engagement 
The rising digital adoption across rural India—powered by smartphone penetration and agri- 
tech platforms—offers a significant growth avenue. Mobile-based apps, SMS-based advisory 

services, and digital marketplaces enable real-time, data-driven decision-making for farmers. 
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Anya Polytech can capitalize on this trend by: 
*  Launching digital platforms for product education and advisory 

*  Integrating loyalty and rewards programs for repeat customers 
e Facilitating online ordering and doorstep delivery, especially in Tier Il and Tier Il 

towns 
This direct-to-farmer engagement not only enhances accessibility but also positions the brand 
as a trusted and tech-savvy agri-partner. 

3. Sustainable and Organic Farming Solutions 
With the growing emphasis on climate-resillent agriculture and eco-friendly farming, 
demand Is rising for: 

*  Bio fertilizers 

* Organic soil conditioners 
* Environmentally safe micronutrients 

This green transition is driven by consumer demand for residue-free food, government 
incentives, and global ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) benchmarks. 
By expanding its portfolic in organic and low-impact fertilizer solutions, Anya Polytech can 

tap into a fast-growing niche, especially among horticulturists, export-oriented farms, and 
certified organic growers. 

4. Expansion into Underserved Agricultural Zones 

Much like the transition from unorganized to organized formats in other industries, Indian 
agriculture too Is witnessing formalization. Eastern and North-Eastern India, tribal farming 
zones, and dryland regions represent underserved, high-peotential markets. 

With its expertise and product quality, Anya Polytech is well-positioned to: 

*  Enter new geographies with affordable, accessible solutions 

«  Partner with state governments, cooperatives, and agri-societies 

¢ Build distribution networks in regions traditionally dominated by local, unorganized 
players 

This geographical expansion will not only widen the company’s footprint but also ensure 
inclusive growth by reaching farmers in remote, high-need areas. 

5. Government Partnerships and Policy Alignment 
Various schemes under the Government of India—such as PM-PRANAM, Soil Health Card, 

Paramparagat Krishl Vikas Yojana (PKVY), and Subsidy Reforms—provide fertile ground 
for collaboration. 
By aligning with these initiatives, Anya Polytech can: 

*  Access funding for pilot projects 
* Contribute to capacity-building and farmer education 

*  Influence future-ready agricultural practices at scale 

CONCLUSION 

The Indian fertilizer industry is no longer just about supplying nutrients—it's about offering 
customized, sustainable, and technology-integrated solutlons. Companies like Anya 

Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, with their deep domain expertise and customer-centric 
approach, are poised to lead this transformation. By harnessing these opportunities, the 
company can not only strengthen its market position but also play a key role in shaping the 

future of Indian agriculture—making It more productive, inclusive, and environmentally 
responsible. 
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: RESTRAINTS 

‘While the Indian fertilizer and agrochemical industry offers significant growth potential, it also 
faces a range of structural, regulatory, and market-driven challenges that can constrain 

momentum and profitability. These restraints require careful navigation to ensure long-term 
resilience and sustainability. 

1. Volatility in Raw Material Prices and Supply Chain Disruptions 

The sector remains heavily dependent on imported raw materials such as phosphates, 
potash, and ammeonia, Global price fluctuations, geopolitical tensions, and shipping bottlenecks 
often lead to supply chain instability and cost unpredictability, making it difficult to 

maintain consistent pricing or profitability. 

This exposure is especially critical for manufacturers like Anya Polytech, where input costs 
directly impact margins and pricing competitiveness. 

2. Regulatory and Subsidy-Related Challenges 
The Indian fertilizer industry operates under a regulated pricing environmeat, especially for 
urea and key nutrients. Delays in subsidy disbursements under schemes like the Nutrlent- 
Based Subsidy (NBS) can strain liquidity and impact working capital cycles, 

Additionally, frequent policy shifts, compliance mandates, and subsidy ralonalization 
debates create uncertainty and limit the ability to plan long-term strategic investments. 

3. Intensifying Market Competition 
With the rise of both domestic and multinational players, the Indian fertilizer sector has 
become increasingly competitive, The presence of numerous small-scale manufacturers 

offering low-cost alternatives and price-sensitive procurement policies in rural markets 
leads 1o shrinking margins and limits the room for product differentiation. 

To stay competitive, companies must go beyond pricing and invest in brand trust, farmer 
education, and value-added services, all of which require significant time and resources, 

4. Environmental and Sustainabllity Pressures 

Growing awareness around overuse of chemical fertilizers, nutrient runoff, and its long-term 
effects on sofl health is prompting regulators and consumers to push for eco-friendly and 
organic alternatives, While this shift opens up new opportunities, it also challenges 
traditional fertilizer businesses to adapt their product niix, re-invest in R&D, and navigate 

stringent environmental compliance norms. 

Failure to address these concerns could risk reputational damage and limit access to emerging 

markets driven by sustainability demands. 

5. Limited Digital Penetration in Rural Markets 
Although digitalization Is progressing, a significant portion of India's small and marginal 
farmers still lack access to or comfort with digital tools, This gap can hinder the rollout of tech- 
driven advisory platforms, loyalty programs, or online distribution channels, limiting 
engagement in key regions and slowing the company’s ability to scale digitally. 

6. Fragmented Distribution Networks 

In many rural and remote regions, the fertilizer distribution network remains fragmented and 
inefficient, leading to supply Inconslstencies, counterfeit risks, and limited last-mlle reach. 
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Establishing and maintaining a reliable supply chain In such regions involves significant 
logistical investment and operational complexity. 

CONCLUSION 

The Indian fertilizer industry Is navigating a complex environment marked by cost pressures, 

regulatory constraints, and evolving market expectations. For Anya Polytech & Fertilizers 
Limited. addressing these challenges will require strategic agility, investment in innovation, 
and a strong focus on operational efficiency and compliance. Successfully mitigating these 
restraints will be key to unlocking the full potential of the opportunities that lie ahead in 
India’s fast-transforming agricultural ecosystem. 

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy 

Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited has implemented a comprehensive and well-structured 
internal control system designed to support the efficiency, integrity, and reliability of its 
operations and financial reporting processes. The framework is aligned with the scale, 
complexity, and sector-specific needs of the company, ensuring effective management of 

operational, compliance, and flnancial risks. 

The Internal Audit function plays a central role in monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness 

of these controls. Operated under a clearly defined charter the Internal Audit team is 
ndependent and reports directly to senfor management and functionally to the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee of the Board. This reporting structure reinforces the objectivity and 
integrity of audit processes. 

Key features of the internal control framework include: 
* Periodic risk assessments and control evaluations 

» Continuous monitoring of compliance with standard operating procedures 

= Validation of the accuracy of financial records and reporting 
» Safeguarding of the Company’s assets and resources. 

Internal controls are regularly reviewed and enhanced In line with emerging risks, regulatory 
changes, and business needs. During the financial year 2024-25, the Internal controls, 
including internal financial controls over financial reporting, were found to be adequate and 

operating effectively. 

Findings from internal audit reviews are shared with relevant process owners, and corrective 
actions are promptly implemented. This proactive and responsive approach has helped create 

a culture of accountability and continuous improvement, thereby strengthening the overall 
governance environment within the organization. 

The Board, through the Audit Committee, continues to monitor the Internal control 
mechanisms and is comumitted to ensuring that they evolve in line with industry best 
practices and the Company's long-term strategic goals. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Sr. No. |[Financial Results |Fy 2024-25 |FPY2023-24 
1 [Turnover (including Other Income) |12.105.63 |11,759.06 
2 [EBITDA [1,669.74 |1,568.55 
3 |[Profit before Tax (PET) 1,149.41 944.50 
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sr. No. |[Financial Results FY 2024-25 |Fy2023-24 
[Profit after Tax (PAT) 70141 754.75 

s [Earnings Per Share (Basic) (Rs.) o073 0.86 

6 [Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (Rs.) lo.73 Jo.86 

‘The financial performance of the Company during the financial year 202425 reflects a modest 
improvement in revenue, with total turnover (including other income) increasing to Rs. 

12,105.63 lakhs as compared to Rs. 11,759.06 lakhs In the previous year, representing a 
year-on-year growth of approximately 2.96%. 

Desplte revenue growth, the Company continued to report a loss at the EBITDA level of Rs. 

1,669.74 lakhs, though this marks an improvement over the EBITDA of Rs. 1,568.55 lakhs in 
FY 2023-24. The narrowing of the operating loss was driven by better cost controls, improved 
realization in certain product lines, and early results from internal efficlency measures. 

‘The Profit Before Tax (PBT) stood at Rs. 1,149.41 lakhs, and the Profit After Tax (PAT) was 
Rs. 701.41 lakhs, both showing a reduction in loss compared to the previous year. The 
improvement was primarily attributed to enhanced operational performance and lower 
finance and depreciation costs. 

The Earnings Per Share (EPS) for FY 2024-25 stood at Rs. 0.73 (Basic) and Rs. 0.73 
(Diluted), compared to Rs. 0.86 and Rs. 0.86, respectively, in FY 2023-24, indicating a 
relative improvement in shareholder value retention despite continued losses. 

A detailed discussion on Lthe Company’s operational and (inancial performance is provided in 
the Director's Report under the section titled “Overview of Compamy’s Financial 
Performance.” 

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

At Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, we firmly believe that human capital is not merely a 
resource—it is the cornerstone of our long-term vision and organizational growth. Our people 
form the backbone of our success, and we are deeply committed to creating a workplace that 
fosters excellence, inclusivity, and continuous development. 

Recognizing that a skilled and motivated workforce is critical to our performance, we have 
cultivated a culture that encourages professional development, open communication, and 
shared responsibility. Our approach is centered on nurturing talent, empowering employees, 
and building meaningful, long-term relationships with our team members. 

To support this, we have established a structured internal training and capacity-building 
framework, offering targeted programs across functions and roles. These programs are aimed 
at enhancing both technical capabilities and leadership competencies, ensuring that our 
employees stay aligned with the latest developments in the fertilizer and agrochemical 
industry. Learning is embedded as a continuous process within the organization, enabling 
individuals to grow with the Company and contribute more effectively to our strategic goals. 

In alignment with our people-first philosophy, the Company has implemented performance- 

linked initiatives, including a thoughtfully desigaed Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP). The 
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Desplte revenue growth, the Company continued to report a loss at the EBITDA level of Rs. 
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Rs. 701.41 lakhs, both showing a reduction in loss compared to the previous year. The 
improvement was primarily attributed to enhanced operational performance and lower 
finance and depreciation costs. 

The Earnings Per Share (EPS) for FY 2024-25 stood at Rs. 0.73 (Basic) and Rs. 0.73 
(Diluted), compared to Rs. 0.86 and Rs. 0.86, respectively, in FY 2023-24, indicating a 
relative improvement in shareholder value retention despite continued losses. 

A detailed discussion on Lthe Company’s operational and (inancial performance is provided in 
the Director's Report under the section titled “Overview of Compamy’s Financial 
Performance.” 

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

At Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited, we firmly believe that human capital is not merely a 
resource—it is the cornerstone of our long-term vision and organizational growth. Our people 
form the backbone of our success, and we are deeply committed to creating a workplace that 
fosters excellence, inclusivity, and continuous development. 

Recognizing that a skilled and motivated workforce is critical to our performance, we have 
cultivated a culture that encourages professional development, open communication, and 
shared responsibility. Our approach is centered on nurturing talent, empowering employees, 
and building meaningful, long-term relationships with our team members. 

To support this, we have established a structured internal training and capacity-building 
framework, offering targeted programs across functions and roles. These programs are aimed 
at enhancing both technical capabilities and leadership competencies, ensuring that our 
employees stay aligned with the latest developments in the fertilizer and agrochemical 
industry. Learning is embedded as a continuous process within the organization, enabling 
individuals to grow with the Company and contribute more effectively to our strategic goals. 

In alignment with our people-first philosophy, the Company has implemented performance- 

linked initiatives, including a thoughtfully desigaed Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP). The 
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ESOP not only acts as a financial Incentive but also fosters a sense of ownership and collective 
purpose, encouraging deeper engagement and loyalty across all levels of the organization. 

Our human resource policies are aligned with Industry best practices, focusing on: 
*  Merit-based growth 

*  Diversity and inclusion 
* Employee health and well-being 

*  Workplace safety and compliance 

The Industrial relations climate during the year remained stable, constructive, and cordial. We 
maintain transparent dialogue with our workforce and are committed to upholding a fair and 
respectful work environment. 

CONCLUSION 

Our holistic HR strategy, which blends skill development, performance recognition, and a 

culture of belonging, continues to be a key enabler of sustainable growth at Anya Polytech & 

Fertilizers Limited. By investing in our peaple, we invest in the future of the Company. 

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

(For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025) 
Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

: Explanation (For 
Sr. No. [Particulars FY2024-25 |[FY2023-24 '(';f;‘““ ariance of 25% or 

more) 

: o significant 
1 Current Ratic 1.10 0.99 12% wariance (<25%) 

[Debt Service INo significant | 
& ICoverage Ratio 10.95 0.89 7% ariance (<25%) | 

Decline due to 
IReturn on Equity | crease in share 

3 |[Ratio (%) L1% [24% 52%  |lapital through IPO, 
diluting ROE 

H Stock levels increased | 
Inventory to meet seasonal 

i Turnover Ratio [/ *=>* i f30% demand, reducing 
turnover | 

[Trade Receivables Extended credit [ 
P [Turnover Ratio “7'00 1175 0% eriod for customers 

(Trade Payables [No significant 

o [Turmover Ratio 1059 26 S% ariance (<25%) 

\Sharp improvement 
INet Capital due to better 

t4 [Turnover Ratio 2191 19024 I utilization of capital 
ost PO 

[Net Profit Ratio_|[6% 7% 10% __ ||No significant 

59 I ANNUAL REPORT-APFL-2024-25



Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

lanation (For 
Sr.No. [Particulars  (FY2024-25 |[FY2023-24 |VATANC | yoriance of 25% or 

(%) more) 

%) [ | 1l | variance (<25%) 
Increased equity 

o ‘E;“‘f:y‘;: ‘(3;‘5“’1 7% 145 150% |duringIPO reduced 
P IROCE temporarily 

[Equity increase and 
Return on IPO-related 

19 Investment (%) 2% 5% [29% djustments reduced 
ROL 

Notes: 
* Ratios have been calculated in accordance with applicable accounting standards and 

guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

* Variance explanations are provided for changes exceeding +25% as per SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, where applicable. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysls and Directors’ Report describing 
the Company’s objectives, strategies, expectations, projections, and estimates may be 
considered forward-looking statements under applicable laws and regulations. These 

statements are based on certaln assumptions and expectations of future events. 

Actual resuits may differ materially from those expressed or implied in these forward-looking 
statements due to various risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to: 

Changes in economic conditions 

Government policies and regulations 

Market demand and supply dynamics 
Input cost fluctuations 

Competitive pressures 

Global developments impacting trade and logistics 

The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. 
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DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 
197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE 
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, and 

Company Secretary during the Financial Year 2024-25 and ratio of the remuneration of 
each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2024-25 are as under: 

Ratio of 

Percentage Increase in r:;':;'mn?::r 
Sr. No. |[Name ' Designation IRemuneration (FY 2024~ % 

25VsFY2023-24)  |Median 
Remuneration of 
Employees 

Mr Yashpal Sing 1 [rYashpalS8h  usanaging Director [INil 15.47 
2. |[Mr. Anurag Agarwal | Chief Financial Officer |[Nil [Nl 

2 R ‘Company Secretary & ||, . = 
3. |[Ms.Kavita Rani | Compliance Officer Nl Nil 

Note: Except for the Key Managerlal Personnel mentioned above, no other Directors received 
remuncration other than sitting fees for attending Board and Committee meetings. 
2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: 

9.69. 
3. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 102. 
4. Average percentile increase already made in the salarics of employees other than the 

managerial personnel is 1% in the last financial year and its comparison with the 

percentile increase In the managerial remuneration and Justification thereof Is Nil and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration. 

5. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 
6. Information as per Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of Chapter XIll, Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 - Top 10 employees in terms of 
remuneration drawn during the year: 

i | Bame | Deagmation | Age Remuneration | Qualiation | Dpenence | Commencement | Last Percentage 
Mo Ihatureor | (Vews) | (Pa.taiths) (rears) ofBapioment | Emplepment | of qulty 

Dutles OoiningDase) | Held Sheres 
Hou 

a. Employees employed throughout the Financial Year 2024-25 with remuneration not less 
than 31,02 crore -Nil 
b. Employees employed for part of the Financial Year 2024-25 with remuneration at a rate not 
less than %8.5 lakh per month - Nil_ 
¢ Employees employed throughout or part of the Financial Year 2024-25 who drew 
remuneration in excess of that of the Managing Director and holding >2% equity shares -Nil 
7. None of the employees of the Company is a relative of any Directors of the Company ~ Not 

Applicable 
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FORM MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appcintment and Remuneration cf Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 
The Members, 
ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED 
S - 2, Level, Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, International Trade Tower 
Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate governance practice by M/s. ANYA 
POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”), incorporated on 
27t September, 2011 having CIN: U01403DL2011PLC225541 and Registered office at § - 2, 

Level, Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, Nehru Place, 
New Delhi - 1100189. Secrelarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 (*The period under review") 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, In the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and have relied on the records, documents and 
information shared to us by the Company. for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, 
according to the following provisions of (including any statutory modifications, amendments, 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force): 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; APPLICABLE 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the Bye-Laws framed thereunder; 

APPLICABLE 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; NOT APPLICABLE 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’): 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- APPLICABLE 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015- APPLICABLE 
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) 

) 

B 

h) 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - APPLICABLE 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweal Equity) Regulations, 2021- NOT APPLICABLE 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018- NOT APPLICABLE 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client- NOT APPLICABLE 
The Secusities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021- NOT APPLICABLE 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing 
of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021- NOT APPLICABLE 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEEI LODR)- APPLICABLE 

(vi) The other law, as informed and certified by the management of the Company which, is 
specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/ industry is: 

 The Indian Contract Act, 1872; 
* The Payment of Wages Act, 1936; 
« The Minimum Wages Act, 1948; 
« The Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952; 
«The Employees' Pension Scheme, 1995; 

« The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948; Employees’ State [nsurance (Central) 

Rules, 1950 and Employees’ State Insurance (General) Regulations, 1950; 
» The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965; 
« The Income Tax Act 1961 and Income Tax Rules, 1962; 
« The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881; 

» The Maternity Benefits Act, 1961; 
» The Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972; 
+ The Industrial Health & Safety Act, 1972; 

« The Consumer Protection Act, 1886; 
» The Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013; 
« The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; 

« The Information Technology Act, 2000; 
« Information Technology (Reasonable security practices and procedures and 
sensitive personal data or information) Rules, 2011. 

‘We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the systems 
and the mechanism formed by the company for the Compliances under the applicable Acts 
and the regulations to the Company. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

As per the documents/ returns maintained and shared to us, during the period under review 
the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. as mentioned above. 
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‘We [urther report that- 

The Board of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
made thereunder, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 

Majority decision is carrled through the unanimous consent of all the Board of Directors and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes In the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

For M/s Sanket Jain & Co. 
Company Secretaries 
Firm Registration No. $2013UP231400 
Peer Review No. 2262/2022 

sd/- 

Sanket Jain 
(Proprietor) 
M. No.: A26531, C.P. No.: 12583 
UDIN: A026531G001098459 

Date: 28.08.2025 
Place: |hansi 
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To 

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

The Members, 
ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED 
S-2, Level, Uppesr Ground Floor, Block - E, International Trade Tower 

Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record Is the responsibllity of the management of the 
Compauny. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, followed by us, provide a reasonable 
‘basis for our opinion. 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company. 

Wherever required, we have duly verified the data/ information about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 

to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company. 

For M/s Sanket Jain & Co. 

Company Secretaries 
Firm Registration No. 52013UP231400 
Peer Review No. 2262/2022 

sd/- 

Sanket Jain 
(Proprietor) 
M. No.: A26531, C.P. No.: 12583 
UDIN: A026531G001058459 

Date: 28.08.2025 
Place: Jhansi 
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Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

FORM NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Actand Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companles Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis 

‘There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm'’s length basis for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025. 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm'’s length basis 

S..NoJ[ Partculars |[ Detais(1) |[ Detais(2) |[ Detatis(3) |[ Detais(4) |[ Detatls (5) 
[Arawali [Poly firm ame of Related [Yara Green Mr.YashPal  [[Ms. Yash Fal 

3 Ifiany ]' "“‘.‘h‘d - |Energy Pvt. Ltd. ::;‘hmm Singh Yaday  |[Singh Yadav 

(Chairman & (Chalrman & 
jature of (Wholly-owned  |(Wholly-owned ||Subsidiary {60% 

2 hlhflmxflp ISubsidiary ISubsidiary Inolding) [Manstne Mg 

y 'rfo‘;;n":; Loan/ Advance [[Loan / Advance ||Losn / Advance & lgiven lgiven [Remuneraton  |[Loan Taken 

4_|[puration J[orgoing |[ongoing |[ongoing. |[Fyz024-25 _|[ongoing 
{Salient Terms  ||Loan balance as ||Loan balance as ||Loan balance ss |[Remuneration | |Loan balance as 

5 |l(including lon 31.03.2025: |lon 31.03.2025: |lon 31.03.2025: ||paid: 227,70 |on 31.03.2025: 
[value, if any) £1.980.61 Lakhs ||¥262.87 Lakhs _||31,201.29 Lakhs ||Lakhs £266.59 Lakhs 

ate of 

pproval by 6 Ewd FAudi ||August28, 2025 ||August 28, 2025 |August 28, 2025 |{August 26, 2025 |lAugust 28, 2025 
Committee 

7 g‘r"""“‘""‘“ it na Na INg N any 
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Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited 
@ Registered Office: S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 

Corp office.: B-243, Sector-26, Noida, India 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

'TO THE MEMBERS OF “ANYA POLYTECH AND FERTILZERS LTD" 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ANYA POLYTECH & 
FERTILIZERS LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that 
date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies 

and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Standalone Financial 
Statements”). 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to vs, 

the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the Information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS") and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone 

Financial Statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

o We draw attention to Note 5 of the standalone financial statements, which explains a 
change in management’s estimate regarding the useful life of Plant and Machinery. Based 

on a technical assessment and review of the assets’ condition and expected usage, the 
company has revised the estimated useful life from 15 years to 20 years during the 
current financial year. Consequently, the depreciation charge for the year has been reduced 
by Rs. 70 lakhs compared to what it would have been under the previous calculation of 

depreciation. This change has been accounted for prospectively in accordance with the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Our opinion is not modified in respect 
of this matter; 

* We draw attention to Note 48 of the Standalone Financial Statements, which outlines the 
assessments and demand orders issued under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as well as the 
Goods & Service Tax and Work Contract Tax. Additionally, it addresses the appeal filed by 

the company against the demand order issued under the Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
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Act, 2017. These matters have been disclosed by the company as contingent labilities in 
the financial statements. In our opinion, the disclosure made by the company in respect of 
these contingent liabilities is adequate. Our opinion on the financial statements remains 
unmodified (n this regard. 

o We draw attention to Note 62 of the Standalone Financial Statements, which details the 

adjustment of IPO expenses amounting to Rs. 531 crores, charged against the Securitles 
Premium, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 32. The note provides reference 
to the accounting treatment adopted for the adjustment of the |PO-related costs, in line 
“with the provisions of Indian Accounting Standards. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone financial results 

The statement has been prepared based on the standalone annual flnancial statements. The 
Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 

statements that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income of 
the company and other financial information In accordance with the applicable accounting 
standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 

33 of the listing regulations. This responsibllity also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability w continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

The board of directors are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Result 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when jt exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken based on the Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
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risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basls 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern, and the same have not been estimated. 

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, Including the 
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control thal we identify during our audit. 

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 
in the Annexure A; a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) We have sought and obrained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) In our opinlon, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters 

stated in the paragraph 2 (f)-(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g). 
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) 

d) 

e) 

8) 

h) 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this Report agree with the books of account. 
In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 
Based on the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
With reference to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, 
refer to our comment in Paragraph 2 (b) above and refer to our comment in paragraph 
2(1)(vi) below. on reporting under rule 11 (g). 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B. 
As required by section 197 (16) of the Act; in our opinion and according to information 

and explanation provided to us, the remuneration pald/ provided by the Company to lts 
directors for the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act and remuneration paid/ provided to directors is not in excess of the limit laid down 

under this section. 
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in Its 
Standalone Financial Statements - Refer Note 48. 
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025. 

iii. There is no delay in amount required to be transferred, to the Inyestor Education and 

2 

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025. 
(a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person 
or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneiiclaries. 
(b) The management has represented to us, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief 
no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign 

entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 

Party (“Ultimate Beneficiarles") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(c) Based on the information and explanation given to us and audit procedures performed 
as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 

notice that has caused us to belleve that the representations made by the management 
and as mentioned under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above contain any material 

misstatement. 
The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year by the company as 
per the provision of Section 123 of the Company Act 2013. 
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, has used accounting 
software, for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year. 

For Jerath & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 08407N 

sd/- 
CA Navneet Jerath 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 085790 

UDIN- 25085790BMIEKN7032 

Dated-30% May 2025 

Place-Noida 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading, "Report on Other legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report on even date: 
i (a) (A) The Company is maintaining records showing particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible asset, hence the maintenance of relevant 
Tecords by the company does not arise. 
(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant 
and equipment by which its property, plant and equipment are verified In a phased 

manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical 
verification of property, plant and equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program majority of 
the property, plant and equipment were verified during the year and according to the 
information and explanation provided to us by the Management no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
(€) According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our 
cxamination of the records of the Company, title deeds of immovable properties as 
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements are held in the name of the Company. 
(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its property, plant and equipment 
(including Right to Use Assets) and intangible assets, Consequently, the question of our 

commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered 
Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the 
aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of property, plant and equipment 
(including Right to Use Assets) or intangible assets does not arise. 

(e) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 

(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(a) The inventory, except goods in transit, has been physically verified by the 
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency, coverage and procedure of 

such verification is reasonable and appropriate. In respect of good-in-transit, 
subsequent goods delivery documents have been verified by the management. The 
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records 
were not 10% or more In the aggregate for each class of inventory and have been 

properly dealt with in the books of account. 
(b) According to the information and explanations previded to us, the Company has 
been sanctioned working capital limits more than five crore rupees, in aggregate, from 

banks or financial institutions on the basts of security of current assets. 
The Management of the Company has provided us with the quarterly returns or 
statements, which they have represented to us have been filed by the Company with 
thelr banks or financial institutions based on the sanction terms. Based on our 
procedures and in our opinion the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company 
for the quarter ended 31 March 2025 with such banks or financial institutions were 
overstated by Rs. 782.60 lakhs, (which his higher by 36% higher than the stocks as per 

books) as compared with the books of account of the Company. For the other quarters 
the same was unverifiable. 

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has made 
investments in subsidiary companies during the year Further, during the year, the 
Company has provided guarantee and has granted unsecured loans o its subsidiary 
companies. 
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iv. 

Vo 

(@) According to the information and explanations provided to us, during the year, the 
Company has provided loans and stood guarantee for its subsidiary companies. 
Aggregate Balance Subsidiaries, joint Nature of 
amount given outstanding at ventures, associates transaction 
during the year | the balance sheet | and others 
(Rs Lakhs) date (Rs Lakhs) 

148.87 lakhs 1980.61 lakhs Arawali Phosphates Ltd | Loan given 
(subsidiary) 

262.87 lakhs 262.87 lakhs Yara Green Energy Pvt | Loan given 
Ltd (subsidiary) 

1089.81 lakhs | 1201.29 lakhs Polyfirm Packaging Pvt | Loan given 
Ltd (subsidiary) 

(b) According to the Information and explanations provided to us and based on our 
review of the terms, conditions and circumstances, the investments made and 
guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the grant of leans are not 
prejudicial to the Company’s interest, except loans given to Yara Green Energy Pvt Ltd 
and Polyfirm Packaging Pvt Lid who have been given Interest free loans without any 
stipulation as fo repayment. 

() According to the information and explanations provided to us, in respect of loans, the 

schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, The 
repayments or receipts are as per the schedule stipulated. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on the terms 
and conditions of the loans, no amount is overdue. 

(e) According to the information and explanations provided to us, no loan granted which 
has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted 
to settle the over dues of existing loans given tu the same parties. 

(f) According to the Iuformation and explanations provided to us, the Company has 
granted loans repayable on demand of Rs. 1501.54 lakhs in current year. The 
outstanding balance is Rs. 3444.77 lakhs. These have been given to related parties as 
defined In clause {76) of sectlon 2 of the Act (refer note 39 to the Standalone 
Financial Statement) which are 85 % of the total loans to related parties. Refer note 
no 40. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act with 
respect to loans, investments, guarantees and security, as applicable. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act 

and the Rules made thereunder or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. 
Accordingly, reporting on clause 3 (v) of the Order Is not applicable. 
We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government 

under Section 148(1) of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed 
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 
complete. 

. (a) According to the Information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted,/ accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, 

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues 
have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate 
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authorities. As explained to us, during the year, the Company did not have any dues on 
account of Cess. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of statutory dues referred in sub clause (a) above, except mentioned below, were in 
arrears as of 31 March 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

Name of Statue Nature of Dues Amount (Rs Status 

Lakhs) 
Income Tax Act Self-assessment tax and 185.73 Lakhs Payable by the 

interest for Assessment year company 
2024-25 

Income Tax Act Additional Demand for 2.77 lakhs Payable by the 
Assessment year 2018-19 company 

Income Tax Act TDS demands for various B.40 lakhs Payable by the 
years compary 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of statutory 
dues referred in sub clause (2} above as of 31 March 2025, which have not been deposited by 
the Company on account of disputes, except for the following: 

Name of | Nature of | Amount (Rs | Amount Period to | Forum where 
Statue Dues Lakhs) paid which the | the dispute is 

under amount pending 
protest relates 

GST Act GST 68.30 lakhs 343 lakhs | 2020-21 Appeals filed 
demands | 141.22 lakhs 6.97 lakhs | 2019-20 | before CGST 

28.97 lakhs 0.77 lakhs | 2018-19 

6.27 lakhs Nil 2017-18 
WCT Act WCT 13.05 lakhs Nil 2014-15 Information Not 

Available 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, 
there are no transactions which were net recorded In the books of account and have 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(a) Based on our audit procedures; in our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowings or interest thereon to any lender. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, our audit procedures and 
as represented to us by the management, we report that the Company has not been 
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 
() According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, term 
loans availed by the Company in the current year have been prima facie; applied for the 
purpose for which they were obtained. 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures 

performed by us, and on an overall exarination of the financial statements of the 
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2 

XVi. 

Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long- 
term purposes by the Company. 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examlination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company 
has not taken any funds (borrowings) from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures 
performed by us, we report that the Comapany has not raised loans during the year on 
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies. 
(a) The Company has raised moneys by way of initfal public offer of Rs 44.80 crores 
during the year. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year Accordingly, 

reporting on clause x(b) is not applicable. 
(a) Based on the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information 
and explanation provided to us by the management, no fraud by the Company or no 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported to us during the year. 
(b) According to information and explanation provided to us and based on our 

examination of records, no report under sub-section (12) of sectlon 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and up 
to the date of this report. 

(c) According to Information and explanation provided to us and based on our audit 
procedures and enquiry with the vigil mechanism committee, there were no whistle- 
blower complaints received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this 
report. 

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it 
Accordingly, reporting on clause 3 (xii) (a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable. 
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in 
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of 
transactions, which include transactions done through the imprest account of the director, 
and have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by Ind AS 
24 'Related Party Disclosures’. Refer note 39 and Note no 40. 
(a) According to the Information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, 
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 was not applicable for the financial year 2024~ 
25. However, the company has appointed an Internal Auditor for the period starting 
from 1st April 2025. As of the date of this Audit Report, the relevant forms are in 
process to be filed with the MCA. 
(b) In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, clause 

3 (xiv) of CARO 2020, Is not applicable on the company. 
According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with the directors or persons connected with them during the year. 
(a) In our oplnion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of 
India, 1934. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(xvi) (b) & (c) of the Order is not 

applicable. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no Core 
Investment Company within the Group. 
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xvil. The Company has not incurred cash lesses in the current financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

xviif. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 
reporting on clause 3 (xviil) of the Order is not applicable. 

Xix. According to the information and cxplanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 
of financial liabilities, other Information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to belleve that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date. 

‘We, however; state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all ltabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall 
due. 

XX.. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to 
the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 

of the sald Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order (s not 
applicable for the year. 
(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, no amount remaining 
unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to an 
ongoing project. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

For Jerath & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 08407N 

sd/- 
CA Navneet Jerath 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 085790 

UDIN- 25085790BMIEKN7032 

Dated-30% May 2025 

Place-Noida 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (G) UNDER THE HEADING, "REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT ON EVEN DATE: 

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial 
Statements of ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act. 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 

reference to the Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements 
were established and maintalned and f such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the 
Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a 
‘material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone 

Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the 
Standalone Financial Statements. 
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
A Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of ilnancial 
reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial 
controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone 

Financial Statements. 

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the 
Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 

reference to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may detertorate. 

OPINION 
In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and such internal {inancial controls with 
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 
2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Jerath & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 08407N 

sd/- 
CA Navneet Jerath 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 085790 

UDIN- 25085790BMIEKN7032 

Dated-30% May 2025 
Place-Noida 
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BALANCE SHEET 
As At March 31, 2025 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR AS ON MARCH 31, 2025 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

Note: 1 
Background 
Anya Polytech & Fertilizers Limited (earlier known as Anya Polytech & Fertilizers private 

Limited) Is a company limited by shares, incorporated In India on September 27, 2011 as a 
joint venture company between Anya Agro & Fertilizers (P) Ltd and Kribhco Infrastructure Ltd 
[formally known as Kribhco Infrastructure Limited (KRIL)], (now known as DP World Rail 

Logistics Private Limited) a Company registered under Company Act, 1956. The Company Is 
presently engaged in the manufacture of HDE /PP Bags, Agriculture grade Zinc Sulphate & 
Other products from its manufacturing unit at Village Keshurehai, Shahjahanpur: The company 
is the holding company of Arawall Phosphate Limited and Yara Green Energy Private Limited. 

‘The company is incorperated and domiciled in India under the provision of Company Act 
applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at S-2, Level upper Ground 

Floor, International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019.The company had started 
manufacturing PP Bags in its newly installed PP manufacturing unit in its factory premises at 
Shahjahanpur. The unit commenced its manufacturing operation on 20-11-2023 

The company has started retail and Wholesale trade of fertilisers and crop seeds. These items 
are sourced from the local farmers and the companies which are manufacturing/dealing in 
such products. The company has also undertaken farming on the surplus land avatlable besides 
the factory area. 

Note: 2 
Significant Accounting Policies 
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Anya Polytech & 
Fertilizers Limited (the ‘Company’) 

Note: 3 
(a) Basis of Preparation 
i) Compliance with Ind AS 
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the defined 
benefit plans i.e. gratuity which is stated as certified by an actuarial valuer. (Refer Note No 21). 
1if) Functional and Presentation Currency 
These Financial Information are presented in Indian rupees and all amounts disclosed in the 
financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise 
state. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
iv) Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of Standalone financial information in conformity with Ind AS requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses at the 
date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the 
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years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 

assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. 

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed 
below: 
(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
‘The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 
the end of each reporting pericd. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and 
amortisation expense in future periods. 
(b) Defined Benefits and other long term benefits 
The cost of the defined benefit plans such as gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. 
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long- 

term nature, a defined benefit obligation s highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each year end. The principal assumptions are the discount and 
salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government 

bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate 
takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long-term basis 

v) Current and Non-Current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities In the Standalone Financial Statements based on 
current/non-current classificatdon 
An asset Is treated as current when 
* Itisexpected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 

* Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading; 

* [tisexpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
o Itis cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

‘The company classifies all other assets as Non-Current Assets- 
*  Aliability is current when: 

Itis expected to be settied in normal operating cycle; 

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

Itis due to be settled within twelve months after reporting period; or 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
menths after the reporting period 

‘The company classlfies all other Liability as Non-Current Liability 

» Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities 
respectively. 

*  The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 

realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle for the purpose of cwrent- non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 
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Note: 4 
Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing cost Includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with 

the arrangement of borrowings. 
Borrowing cost which are not relatable to the gualifying asset are recognized as an expense in 
the period in which they are incurred. Borrewing cost on specific loans, used on acquisition or 
construction of fixed assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to be ready for 
their intended use, are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred. 

Note: 5 
Property, Plantand Equipment and Intangible Assets 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 
‘The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of 
dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at 
the purchase price. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised 25 a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

The carrying amount of any compenent accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognized 
when replaced. 
All other repalrs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in 
which they are incurred. 
Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
Balance Sheet date, are shown under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for 
intended use before the year end, are shown as capital work-in-progress. 

In case of leasehold land, any unearned increase not attributable to lessor and on which Group 
has right to sell is recognized as own asset and hence the same was not amortized. Any 
unearned increase not attributable to lessor when the asset is sold is valued at Fair Value and 
no amortization is provided on the same, 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is recognised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
assoclated with the expenditure will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the ltem can be 
measured reliably. 

(¢) Depreciation 
Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to allocate their cost, net of 
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as per Schedule II of The Companies 
Act,2013. 
The nseful lives have been determined as specified by Schedule I to the Corapanies Act; 2013, 
The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets' residual 
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 

perfod. 
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Assets Class | Useful Life as per I Management 
CoAct 2013 Estimates 

Plant and Machinery 15 20 

Building 30 30 
Computers 3 3 

Furniture & Fixture 10 10 

Office Equipment 5 5 

Vehicles 10 15 

The company has revised the estimated useful life of its Plant & Machinery from 15 years to 20 
years. As a result of this change in estimate, the depreciation expense for the current financial 
year has decreased by %70 lakhs compared to the amount calculated in the previous year based 
on the earlier estimate 

(d) Capital Work-in-progress 

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed 
as capital work-in- progress. 

*Capital work-in-progress amounting to ¥83.82 lakhs pertains to Plant & Machinery that is under 
installation as of the end of the financial year. 

**The company had advanced ¥2.36 crores to Kardam Construction for the construction 

of the HDPE Plant at Shahjahanpur. Although the contractor did not complete the work 
and failed to submit the relevant invoices, the management has considered it 
appropriate to treat the amount as Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP), as the construction 
'was substantially completed by the vendor. 

(e) Capital advances 
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, outstanding at each 
balance sheet date Is classified as capital advances under “other non-current assets". 

De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part [nitially recognized Is de- 
recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognized. 

Intangible Assets 
a) Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future 
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of assets 
can be measured reliably. The Intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including 
incidental costs related to acquisition and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and impairment losses, if any 

Technical Knowhow 
The expenditure incurred is amortised over the estimated period of benefit, commencing with 
the year of purchase of the technology 
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Development Expenditure 
Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product 
registration/ market authorisation relating to the new and/or improved product and/or 
process development is capitalised only If development costs can be measured reliably, the 
product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are 
probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete developrent and 
to use the asset. The expenditure capitalized includes the cost of materfals, direct labour, 
overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and 
directly attributable finance costs (in the same manner as in the case of property, plant and 
equipment). Other development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
asincurred. 

Software Expenditure 
The expenditure Incurred is amortized over the estimated economic life of the asset from the 
year in which expenditure is incurred. 

Others 
The expenditure incurred is amortized over the estimated period of benefit. Intangible assets 
that are acquired (including goodwill recognized for business combinations) are measured 

initially at cost. After inftial recognition, an intangible asset fs carried at its cost less 
accumulated amortization (for finite lives intangible assets) and any accumulated 
impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future 
economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates. 

b) Subsequent Expenditure 
Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which It relates. All other expenditure on intangible assets Is 
recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, as incurred 

¢) Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated 
residual values using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives and is 
generally recognised in depreciation and amortisation expense in the Standalone Statement 
of Profit and Loss 

d) Derecognition 
An item of Intangible assets s de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of 
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net dispesal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the 
asset is derecognised. 

Government Grants 
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company 
will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received. 

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis 
over the years in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the 
grants are intended to compensate or when performance obligations are met. 

Government grants, whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct 
or otherwise acquire non-current assets and nonmonetary grants are recognised and 
disclosed as ,deferred Income" under non- current ligbility in the Balance Sheet and 
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transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the 
useful lives of the related assets. 

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation 
and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances Indicate that they might be impaired. The Group's non-financial assets other 
than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimated. 
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate 
assets) are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the 

smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

‘The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to 
sell. Value In use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the CG. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first 
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the 

carrying amount of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUS) on a pro rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other 
assets for which Impatrment loss has been recognised In prior perlods, the Group reviews at 
reporting date whether there Is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

Note: 6 
Financial Instruments 
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity 

(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS 
i) Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular 
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase 
or sell the asset. 

ii) Subsequent Measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
a) Debtinstruments at amortised cost 
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual 
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terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding. 

After initial measurement, such flnancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the 
financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in other Income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from 
irpairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies 
to trade and other receivables. 

b) Debtinstrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): 

A "debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if the objective of the business model is 
achleved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financlal assets, and the 
asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments Included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at 
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI). On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest 

earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt Instrument Is reported as interest income using the EIR 
method 
) Debt instrument, Derivatives and Equity Instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL) 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet 
the criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In 
addition, at initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably elect to designate a debt 
instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, 
such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency.  Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair 
value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Equity instruments 
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income from investments is recognised in 
statement of profit and loss on the date that the right to receive payment is established. 

d) Equity instrament at FVTOCI 
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all falr value 
changes on the instument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of 

investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings 

iii) Impairment of Financial Assets 

‘The Company recognises loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade 
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, 
ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at 
lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at 
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the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

iv) Derecognition of Financial Assets 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (ie., removed from the Restated Consolidated 
Financial Information) when: 
a) The rights to receive cash flow from the asset have expired, or 

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flow in full without material delay to the third party under a 
"pass-through" arrangement and either (2) the Company has transferred substantially all the 
risk and rewards of the assets, or (b) the Company has neither transferred ner retained 

substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset. but transferred control of the assets. 

‘When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass- through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownershlp, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that 

case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Company has retained. Write off of financial assets The gross carrying amount of a financial 
asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial 

asset in {ts entlrety or a portion thereof. The Group expects no significant recovery from the 
amount written off 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
1) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
Financial Liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 

through Profit or Loss and financial liabilities at amortised cost, as appropriate. All Financial 
Liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of liabilities subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, they are measured net of directly attributable transaction cost. In 
case of Financial Liabilities measured at fair value through Profit or Loss, transactions costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities are recognized immediately in the 
statement of Profit or Loss. The Company’s Financial Liabilities include trade and other 
payables, loans and borrowings including financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial 
instruments. 

1) Subsequent Measurement 
a) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 

trading and financial labilities designated upon Initial recognition as at fair value through the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Financial Liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes 

derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging 
instraments In hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Gains or losses on liabilitles held 
for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
b) Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 

Financial Liabllities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are 
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying 
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective Interest method. Galns and losses are recognised in the 
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Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
c) Financial Guarantee Contracts 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment 
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor falls to 
make the payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial 
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction 

cost that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is 
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment 
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative income 

recognised in accordance with principles of Ind AS 115. 

iii) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liabllity Is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 

liability and the recognition of @ new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss. 

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial assets and financial liabllities are offset and the net amount presented In the Balance 
Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle them on 2 net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
ltability simultaneously. 

INVENTORIES 
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at 

net estimated realisable value. 

The Company uses FIFO method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for 
goods in transit which Is valued at specifically identified purchase cost and other direct costs 

incurred. Cost includes all costs of purchase, and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable) 
taxes wherever applicable. Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and 
net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 

Note: 7 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short- 
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand, in 
banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with criginal maturities of three months 
or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered 

part of the cash management system. 
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Note: 8 
Contingent Liabilities And Assets 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will 

be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mere uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Group or a present cbligation that is not recognised because it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The group does not recognise a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities and commitments are 
reviewed by the management at each balance sheet date. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, 
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of 
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in 

which the change occurs. 

Note: 9 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it can be relfably measured and is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the company. 

Sale of Goods 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 

of the goods are transferred to the customer and is stated net of sales returns and sales tax but 
including export benefits accruing on export sales. Revenue Is also recognised for goods sold 
but not dispatched, where the property in such goods is transferved from the seller to the 

buyers and where dispatches could not be made on account of practical difficulties at the 
buyers' end. 

Interest: 
Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount of underlying 
outstanding and the rate applicable. 

Dividends 
Dividend from investments is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account when the right to 
receive payment is established. 

Note: 10 

Employee Benefits 
Liabilities in respect of employee benefits to employees are provided for as follows 

Current Employee Benefits 
(a) Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed as the 
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under 
short-term cash bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be 

estimated reliably; 
(b)Employees" State Insurance ("ESI") Is provided on the basis of actual liability accrued and 
paid to authorities; 
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(c)The Company has adopted a policy on compensated absences which are both accurmulating 
and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is 
determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet 
date using projected unit credit method on the additional aiount expected to be paid / availed 

as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance shect date. Expense 
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences 

oceur; 
(d) Expense in respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on the basis of the amount 
paid or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee. 

Post separation employee benefit plan 
a) Defined Benefit Plan 

Gratuity liability accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation as per Ind AS 19 ,Employee 
Benefits". Liability recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet In respect of gratuity Is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of each reporting period less the fair 
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent 
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of defined benefit Is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yield at 
the end of each reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximate to the 

terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate 
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is 
included in employee benefit expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Actuarial gain / loss pertaining to gratuity, post separation benefits and PF trust are accounted 

for as OCL All remaining components of costs are accounted for in Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

b) Defined contribution plan 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan where the Company’s legal or 
constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it contributes to a separate legal entity. 

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered 
provident fund scheme. Contribution to Provident Fund is made in accordance with provision 
of Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952, and is recognized as an expense in the statement of 
Profit and Loss In the period in which the contribution is due. 

Note: 11 
Income Tax 
Current Tax 

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the 
year. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is the effect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income 
that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. 

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
and recognized/derecognized only to the extent that there is reasonable/virtual certainty, 
depending on the nature of the timing differences, that sufficient future taxable income will be 

avallable against which such deferred tax assets can be realized, 
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified 
period. In the perfod in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset In 
accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of 
profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Group reviews the same at each 
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the 
extent it is not reasonably certain that the Group will pay normal income tax during the 
specified period. 

Current and Deferred Tax for the Year 

Current and Deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognized In other comprehensive Income or directly in equity, In which case, the current 
and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively. 

Earning Per Share 
Basic EPS= Profit/ (loss) attributable to the owners of the company/ Weighted Average no. of 
Equity Shares outstanding during the financial year 

Diluted EPS=Profit/ (loss) attributable to the owners of the company/Weighted Average no. of 
Equity Shares outstanding during the financial year after adjustment for the effects of dilutive 

potential equity shares 

Note: 13 

Statement of Cash Flow & Segment Reporting 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 

cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows from operating, Investing and financing activities of 
the company are segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. 

SEGMENT REPORTING 
Operating segments are reported in a3 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 
to the chief operating decision maker:. The board of directors assess the financial performance 

and position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions and therefore the board would be the 
chief operating decision maker. The Company has the following operating/ reportable 
segments: HDPE Bags and Zinc Division. 

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each requires different 
technologies, marketing approaches and other resources. 

For management purposes, the Company uses the same measurement policies as those used in 
its financial statements. In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the 
business activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment. 
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Polymer Fertilizer 
Particulars Division Division Finance Cost | Unallowable | Total 

Scgment 459188 | 723930 1193118 
Revenue 

Segment Results = 146,81 134858 1495.39 

Finance Cost 51033 510.33 

Profit  Before 
Tax 985.06 

| Segment Assets | 576162 | 8951.17 942.29 15655.08 
Segment 
Liability 1900.81 4896.32 276.23 7073.36 

Note: 14A 
Fixed Assets Schedule 

The company has revised the estimated useful life of its Plant & Mad)lnery from 15 years to 20 
years. As a result of this change in estimate, the depreciation expense for the current financial 
year has decreased by 70 lakks compared to the amount calculated in the previous year based 
on the earlier estimate 

Note: 14B 
OWIP 

{Amountin s 
“Amountin CWIP for a period of 

WP than Lyear [1-Zyears |23 years [More than3 years| _ Total® 
O i progress 63,82 K 0] a2 

|Capltal WIP-old construction 236,55 36.58] 
suspended 00 g) 00) 0] 

32031 00} 0] 00] 32038] 
Previous Years ] 

*Capital worlc-in-progress amounting to 383.82 lakhs pertains to Plant & Machinery that is 
under installation as of the end of the financial year. 
**The company had advanced 32.36 crores to Kardam Construction for the construction of the 
HDPE Plant at Shahjahanpur. Although the contractor did not complete the work and failed to 
submit the relevant invoices, the management has considered it appropriate to treat the 
amount as Capltal Work-in-Progress (CWIP), as the construction was substantially completed 

by the vendor. 
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Note: 15 
Financial Assets 

i stoszors | sieszozs 
Financial Assets 

Investments in Subsidiaries 

Investments in Arawali Phosphate Limited 53341 53341 

Investment in Yara Green Energy Pvt Ltd 1081.00 .60 

Investment in Polyfirm Packaging Private limited | 120.00 .00 

1734.41 534.01 

The company has acquired an additional 10,803,999 shares in Yara Green at Rs 10 each, bringing 
our total holding to 10,809,999 shares out of a total of 10,810,000 shares. As of March 31, 2025, 
our total ownership in Yara Green stands at 100%. 
The company has made a fresh invesament in Polyfirm Packaging by acquiring 12 lakh shares out 
of a total of 20 lakh shares, thereby establishing it as our subsidiary with a 60% ownership stake. 

Note: 16 
Loans 

Partclars stoszors | steszers 
Loans 

Loan to Subsidiary * 344476 958.07 

Loan to Other Parties ** 598.50 645.98 

4043.26 1604.05 

* The company has the following subsidiaries to whom the advances have been given to 
cover their working capital 

Arawall Phosphate Limited 1980.61 958.07 

Yara Green Energy Private Limited 262.87 .00 

Polyfirm Packing Private Limited 1201.29 .00 

I 3444.76 958.07 

**The company has provided advances to certain parties. These advances comprise both 
interest-bearing and interest-free amounts, with some lacking specific terms regarding 

repayment. 

Note: 17 
Deffered Tax Assets 

Amount As On Amount As On 
ParHcdling 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Deffered Tax Assets 

Opening DTA 95.25 232.09 
DTA during The year -6.29 -136.84 

Closing DTA 88.97 95.25 
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Note: 18 
Inventories 

Particubars stoszors | sioszozs 
Inventories 

Stock of Raw Material 72622 497.59 

Stock of Work in Progress 623.12 32451 

Stock of Finished Goods 642.75 608.49 

Stock of Spares & Packaging 15324 146.58 

2145.33 1577.16 

The company has valued its inventory at the end of the financial year in accordance with Ind 
AS 2 - “Inventories”. 

Note: 19 
Trade Receivables 

Outstanding for following periods from due date 
of payment 

Less than 1 123 More than 
Particulars year 1-2 years _years 3 years 

1 | Undisputed - considered good 1712.56 217.02 .00 149.36 

2 | Undisputed - having credit risk 

3 | Undisputed - credit impaired 

4 | Disputed-considered good 

5_| Disputed- having Credit Risk 

6 | Disputed- Credit Impaired 

Amiount as on 31.03.2025 1712.56 217.02 ] .00 149.36 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment 
Less than 1 23 More than 3 

Particulars year 1-2 years _years years 
1 | Undisputed - considered good 1058.77 123.98 149.36 

2 | Undisputed - having credit risk 

3 | Undisputed - credit impaired 

4 | Disputed-considered good 
5 | Disputed- having Credit Risk 

6 | Disputed- Credit Impaired 

Amount as on 31.03.2024 1058.77 123.98 ] .00 149.36 
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Note: 20 

Cash and cash eguivalents 
Amount As On Amount As On 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Cash Balance 159.79 94,51 

Bank Balances 12.79 85 

Fixed Deposits 18,06 3456 
190.64 129.92 

Note: 21 

Loan & Advances 
Amount As On Amount As On 

Particutars 31032025 | 31.03.2024 
Loan & Advances for Acquisition of Shares 20.00 20.00 

Loan & Advances to Others 807.01 257.23 

| 827.01 277.23 
* The company has given a sum of Rs 19.99 lakhs to Rajender Sayal for acquisition of shares of 
M/s Arawall Phosphate Limited (Subsidiary Company), however, the same is under process as 
atthe end of the financial year. 
** The company has provided advances which are interest-free amounts, with some lacking 
specific terms regarding repayment. 

Note: 22 
Other Current Assets 

Amount As On | Amount As On 
Firteatach 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Earnest Money Deposits 8.19 25.28 

Security Deposits 7296 83.40 

Advance to Creditors 288.31 590.53 

Recoverable form Revenue Authorities 327.21 147.98 

Prepaid Expenses 57 130 

Advances to Employees 9.14 .70 

Other Current Assets 14.68 2346 
721.06 872.64 

*Advance to Creditors is subject to confirmation and reconciliation. 

Note: 23 

uity Share Capital 
Authorised Share Capital 

3,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each z 3200.00 

16,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 3200.00 = 

The fair value of paid up share capital was reduced from Rs 10 per share fully pald up to Rs 
5.50 per share fully paid up vide NCLT order 21.03.2024 approving the reduction of the paid up 
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share capital. Further the face value of the share was reduced Lo Rs 2 per share during the 
current financial year. 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

3,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5.50 each a 1760.00 

12,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 2400.00 - 

The company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs.2 each. Each 
shareholder is eligible to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board 
of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 
except in case of Interim Dividend. The repayment of equity share capital in the event of 
liquidation and buy back of shares are possible subject to prevalent regulations. In the event of 
liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible (o receive the remaining assets of the 

Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

The paid up share capital of the company of Anya Polytech & Fertilisers Ltd (formally known as 
Anya Polytech Fertilisers Pvt Ltd) henceforth is Rs 17.60 crores divided (nto 3.20 crores shares 
@ 5.5 per share each fully paid up reduced from 32 crores divided into 3.20 crores shares @ 10 
per share fully paid up. At the date of registration of minute 3.20 crores @5.5 per share have 
been issued and are deemed to be fully paid up. However, the company has specifically 
extinguished its rights of calling balance Rs 4.50 per share on 3.20 crores. 

"Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the General Meeting, the company reduced the face 
value of its equity shares from 10 each to 2 each. As a result, the total number of equity 
shares increased from 3.20 crore to 8.80 crore equity shares of ¥2 each, without affecting the 

overall share capital 

Subsequently, the company filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on 31st July 2024 for a proposed fresh issue of 3.20 crore 

equity shares with a face value of 32 each. Upon receiving SEBI's approval, the company 
launched its Injtial Public Offering (IPO) on 26th December 2024 at an issue price of 313 per 
share. The equity shares were successfully listed on the NSE SME Exchange on 2nd January 
2025." 

Shares in the Company held by each shareholder more than 5% 

As on 31.03.2025 | NoofShares | % of shares held| 
Yash Pal Singh Yadav 1 5,14,27,607 43% 

Anya Agro & Fertilizers Pvt Ltd 2,70,55,435 23% 

7,84,83,042 | 65% 

Shares Held by Promoter as on 31.03.2025 No of Shares | % of shares held 

Yash Pal Singh Yadav 5,14,27,607 43% 

Anya Agro & Fertilizers Pvt Ltd 2,70,55435 23% 

| 784,83,042 | 65% 
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As on 31.03.2024 No of Shares | % of shares held 

D P World Rail Logistics Private Limited 31,36,712 10% 

Anya Agro & Fertilizers Pvt Ltd 98,38,340 31% 

Yash Pal Singh Yaday 1,50,20,948 59% 

3,19,96,000 | 100% 

Shares Held by Promoter as on 31.03.2024 No of Shares | % of shares held 

Yash Pal Singh Yadav 1,90.20,948 59% 

D P World Rall Logistics Private Limited 31,36,712 10% 

Anya Agro & Fertilizers Pvt Ltd 98,38,340 31% 

3,19,96,000 | 100% 

Note: 24 
Statement of Changes in Equity 

ital | ) Retained | Capital | C%P! Security | Revaluation| Total 
Raiygavry Earnings | Reserve| hcacmption PumlllmL Surplus | 31.03.20 
Opening Balance 372.62 2215 1440.00 00 | 324.07 | 215884 

Transfer of 718.62 718.62 

Current year profit ! ! 
Capital -3.69 -3.69 
Reserve Amortised 
Depreciation -24 -24 
Revalue Assets 
Security Premium 3840.00 ‘ ‘ 3840.00 
issue of shares | | 
1PO Issue Expenses 53181 | | -531.81 
Total 1091.24 | 1846 | 1440.00 3308.19 | 32383 | 618172 

The company has capitalized its Initial Public Offering (IPO) expenses by amortizing them 
against the securities premium arising from the issuance of shares, in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). As per Ind AS 32, the securities 
premium account can be utilized for writing off expenses directly attributable to the issuance 
of equity shares, such as underwriting fees, legal costs, and other direct costs associated with 
the IPO process. 
The amortization of these expenses is systematically spread over a period, aligning with the 
company’s financial policy and in compliance with the prescribed accounting framework. 

Non-current liabilities 
Note: 25 

Financial Liabilities 
Secured Loans (Refer Annexure- 1) 

Pasticalare 3t0az0ss | steszess 
Vehicle Loan 480.95 22381 
Term Loan 830.62 960.56 
Cash Credit Loan [.00 .00 
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Total (A) 131158 118437 

Unsecured Loans B 
Director Loan 266.59 417.07 

Total (B) 266. 417.07 

Total (A+B) 1157816925 | 16,0143914 | 
*Unsecured loans obtained by company are interest free and without any precondition of 
repayment 

Note: 26 
Long Term Provisions 
Particulars Amount As On Amount As On 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Gratuity 76.82 77.92 
76.82 77.92 

Current liabilities 
Note: 27 
Borrowings (Refer Annexure-1) 

Amount As On Amount As On 
Pactinatay 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Vehicle Loan 125.65 53.17 

Term Loan 131.84 106.02 

Cash Credit Loan 224791 2460.82 

Over draft Loan 1346.61 .00 

3852.01 2620.02 

Note: 28 
Trade Payables 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment 
Disputed | Disputed 

Particulars MSME Others dues Others 
1 | Less than 1 Year 212,67 728.85 

2 | 1-2 Years 

3 | 2-3 Years 

4 | More than 3 Years 

Amount as on 

31.03.2025 212.67 728.85 00 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

1} payment 

Disputed Disputed 
Particulars MSME Others dues Others 

1 | Lessthan 1 Year 46190 | 74538 
2 [ 12 Years 5545 4991 
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3 | 2-3 Years 

4 | More than 3 Years 

Amount as on 

31.03.2024 517.35 795.29 N - 

Note: 29 
Other Current Liabilities 

< Amount As On Amount As On 
Bticilace: 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Expenses Payable 7.02 8.14 

Salary & Wages Payable 20.83 21.83 

Statutory Dues Payable * 144.14 62.57 

Security Deposits-Liability 3.80 34.26 

Payable to Employees 03 .36 

175.83 127.16 

* Statutory Dues payable consists of amounts payable towards GST, TDS, ESL, PF and Work Contract Tax 

Note: 30 
Provisions 

Amount As On Amount As On 
Particuiars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Provision for Gratuity .86 .90 

Provision for Tax 44814 189.25 

449.00 190.15 

Note: 31 
Revenue from Operations 

Amount As On Amount As On 
Perticubars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Sales from HDPE/PP Division 4691.88 5655.12 

Sales from ZINC Division 5914.13 5820.81 

Sales from Other products 1325.17 108.32 

1193118 11584.26 

Note: 32 
Other Income 

Amount As On Amount As On 
PRl 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Interest on FDR 18.16 67 

Other Interest Income 136.54 130.09 
Agriculture Income 16.05 25.54 

Interest on IT Refund .00 .04 

Other Income .02 .00 

Capital Subsidy Amortisation 3.69 18.46 

17445 174.80 
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Note: 33 
Cost of Material Consuined 

Amount As On Amount As On 
Partiontars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Opening Stock of Raw Material 644.16 529.09 

Purchase of HDPE/PP 3856.77 426846 

Purchase of Zinc 3926.62 3912.92 

Purchase of HDPE/PP Consumables 20.77 46.24 

Purchase of Zinc Consumables 446.56 357.68 

Closing Stock of Raw Material -879.45 -644.16 

Total 801543 8470.23 

Note: 34 
Purchase of Stock in Trade 

Amount As On Amount As On 
Pitickey 31032025 31.03.2024 
Purchase-Wholesale Qutlet 617.19 137.87 

Purchase-Retail Qutlet 353.11 256.29 

970.30 394.15 

Note: 35 
Purchase of Stock in Trade 

2 Amount As On Amount As On 
Particalury 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Opening Work In Progress 32451 34112 

Opening Finished Goods 608.49 32429 

933.00 66541 

Closing Work in Progress 623.12 32451 

Closing Finished Goods 642.75 608.49 

1265.88 933.00 

Change in Work in Progress and Finished -332.88 -267.59 
Goods 

Note: 36 
Employee Benefit Expenses 

Paiialors Stosaops | stoszozs 
Salary 252.11 249.95 

Director Remuneration 27.70 41.70 

PF Expenses 16.88 20.09 

ESI Expenses 3.64 4.02 

Staff Welfare Expense 10.47 10.49 

Other Allowances 58.04 67.30 

368.84 393.55 
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Note: 37 
Financial Costs 

Amount As On Amount As On 
Paticulaes 31032025 31.03.2024 
Interest on Term Loan 87.75 40.73 
Interest on CC Limit 254.73 18.89 

Interest on Car Loan 5545 3.62 

Bank Charges 32.89 441 

Other Financial Cost 7951 253.02 

510.33 320.66 

Note: 38 
Other Expenses 

icul Amount As On Amount As On 
Parti 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Audit Fees 3.00 3.00 

Agriculture Expenses 223 531 
Legal & Professional Charges 69.17 101.36 

Business Promotion 3165 20.15 

Insurance 7.53 12,50 
Interest on Statutory Dues 1.09 17.14 

Packing and Forwarding Expense 56 1152 

Freight & Cartage Inward 83.39 87.22 

Power Expenses 24640 291.31 

Discount & Incentives 57.24 -99.17 

Other Operational Expenses 16471 212.28 
Communication Expenses 2.82 293 

Security Guard Expenses 14.32 14.17 

Administrative Expenses 7275 52.61 

General Expenses 6440 70.52 

Misc. Expenses 16.31 3.68 

Freight & Cartage Outward 263.90 212.53 

CSR 835 6.50 

Rates & Taxes 19.46 .00 

Donation .00 25 
Current Service Cost of Gratuity 10.36 11.95 

Interest Cost of Gratulty 5.71 7.82 

Tour & Travelling Expenses 1169 14.14 
1157.06 1059.70 
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Note: 39 
Related Party Transaction 
Particulars Name of Related Party Designation 

Key Managerial Persons Yash Pal Singh Managing Director 

Tej Pal Singh Director 

Vineet Bhatia Independent Directors 

Liza Sahni Independent Directors 

Aayushee Bhatia Compliance Officer 
(w.ef 01.05.2025) 

Anurag Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 

Kavita Rani Compliance Officer 

Related Party DP World Rall Logistics Pyt Ltd Shareholder of the 
company 

Anya Agro Fertilisers Pvt Ltd Sharehelder of the 
company 

Subsidiaries Arawali Phosphate Limited Subsidiary Company 

rolyflrm Packaging Private Subsidiary Company 
m! 

| Yara Green Energy Pvt Ltd Subsidiary Company 
Concern in which KMP or APM Infratech LLP Designated Partner 

relative are interested Greengather Fresh LLP Designated Partner 

Yara Infratech LLP Deslgnated Partner 

Proutist Multi State Cooperative | Chairman 
Society Limited 
Shree Krishna Well Pack Private Limited 

Nature of Transactions Name of Related Party Amount 

2024-25 2023-24 

Director Remuneration Yash Pal Singh Yadav 27.70 27.70 

Tej Pal Singh Yadav .00 14.00 

Remuneration to KMP Kavita Rani 7.14 6.46 

Anurag Agarwal 1200 444 
Sitting Fees Liza Sahni 1.80 1.50 

Vineet Bhatia 60 .00 

Office Rent Yash Pal Singh Yaday 6.00 6.00 

Administrative Charges Yash Pal Singh Yadav 00 195 
Purchases Anya Agro Fertilisers Pvt Ltd 270.06 19.73 

Sales Anya Agro Fertilisers Pvt Ltd 4584 25.54 

Sales Arawali Phosphate Limited 156.56 368.23 

Purchases Arawali Phosphate Limited 323.99 237.83 

Interest Income Arawali Phosphate Limited 54.00 54.00 

Initial Investment Poly:;xim Packaging Private 120.00 .00 
limi 

Additional Investment In Arawali Phosphate Limited .00 533.41 

Subsidiaries Yara Green Energy Pvi Lid 108040 | .60 
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Note: 40 
Schedule of Loan from Directors 

For FY 2024-25 

Name of Director Designation | Opening | Additions Repayment | Closing 
Balance Balance 

Yash Pal Singh Yadav | Managing 417.07 1142.00 129248 26559 
(Loan) Director 

Yash Pal Singh Yadav | Managing .00 73491 73491 .00 

(Imprest) Director 

For FY 2023-24 
i < o Opening Closing 

Name of Director Designation Balance Additions | Repayment Balance 

Yash Pal Singh Managing 65111 | 57842 81247 417.07 
Yaday (Loan) Director 
Yash Pal Singh Managing 1148.04 1148.04 .00 

Yadav (Imprest) Director 

For FY 2022-23 

Opening Closing Name of Director | Designation Balance Additions | Repayment Balance 

Yash Pal Singh Managing 116353 | 1417.04 | 1349.11 123146 
Yadav (Loan) Director 

Yash Pal Singh Managing 107157 107157 00 
Yadav (Imprest) Director 

*“Any Balance in the Imprest account of the Director is being adjusted through the Loan 
Account at the end of every year. 

Note: 41 
Reconciliation of Shares 
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Opening Balance 3,20,00,000 3,20,00,000 

Adjustment due to Shares Split from Rs 5.5 per share to Rs 2 | 5,60,00,000 
per share 

Additions during the year issued during the Initial Public 3,20,00,000 - 
Offer 
Shares Buy back - s 

Closing Balance 12,00,00,000 | 3,20,00,000 

Note: 42 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when, as a result of o past event, the Company has a legal or 
constructive obligation; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle the 
obligation; and the amount can be rellably estimated. The amount so recognised is a best 
estimate of the consideraticn required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, taking into 

account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. In an event when the time value 
of money Is material, the provision s carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to 
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settle the obligation. 

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. 
Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the 
dispute can be made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each 
dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. 
Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve 
estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial 
statements. 

Note: 43 
Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures 
Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture are carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the 
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of 

investments In subsidiaries, associates and foint venture, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrylng amounts are recognised n the standalone statement of profit and loss 

Subsidiaries | Country 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Incorporation 

No of shares | % of No of shares % of 
held Holding | held Holdin| 

Arawali Phosphate India 39,08206.00 | 83% 39,08,206.0( 83% 
Limited 
Polyfirm Packaging | India 12,00,000.00 | 60% 
Private Limited | 
Yara Green Energy Pyt ] India 1,08,09,999.00 | 100% 600000 | 60% 

Note: 44 

Deffered Tax 
In accordance with Indiar Accounting Standard 12 "Accounting for Taxes on Income” (Ind AS 12) 
(ssued by ICAJ the company has accounted for deferred taxes during the year. 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Opening Balance 95.25 232.09 

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) | 629 -136.84 
Less/Add Other Adjustments .00 .00 
Closing Balance | 8897 95.25 

Note: 45 
Capitalization of borrowing Cost 
As per IND A5-23 "Borrowing Cost’, capitalisation of Borrowing Cost is as follows- 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Borrowing Cost - | 7045 
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Note: 46 
Employee Benefits Plans 
(a) In accordance witk Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits’; an actuartal valuation has been carried out 

in respect of grotuity. Following assumptions have been taken for valuing the Provision for Gratuity 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Discounting Rate 6.99% 7.40% 

Future Salary increase 10% 10% 

{b) Movement in defined benefit obligations 

Pparticulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 
Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the 78.82 ‘ 105.70 

r 
Tberm on defined benefit obligation 571 | 7.82 

Current service cost 10.36 | 11.95 

Actuarial (gain}/ loss ~17.21 [ -4665 
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year | 77.69 | 78.82 

(c)Expenses charged to the statement of profit and loss 

Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 

Current service cost 10.36 | 11.95 

Interest cost 5.71 | 7.82 

16.08 1 19.78 

(d) Re-measurement profit\losses in other comprehensive income 

Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 
Changes in financial assumptions 1721 | 46.65 

17.21 | 46.65 

(e) Sensitivity analysis of the Defined benefit obligation 

(i)Impact due to change in Discounting rate 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Impact due to increase of 0.50% -6.60 -7.01 

Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 7.39 7.88 

(i) Impact due to change in Salary 
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Impact due to increase of 0.50% 7.14 7.63 

Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 6,46 -6.87 
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(f) Bifurcation of Projected Benefit Obligation 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
| Current liability .86 90 

_Noh-curvent Lok 2652 |\77:92 
77.69 78.82 

Note: 47 
Trade Receivables/ Trade Payables 
Trade recelvables, trade payables unsecured loan from directors, Security & EMD Deposits and 
Security received from dealers are subject to confirmation. 

Note: 48 

Contingent Liability 
Claims against Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt: 

Particulars 321.03.2025 31.03.2024 

TDS Demands for various years 840 3.62 

Work Contract Tax 13.05 13.05 

Income Tax AY 2018-19 2.77 

GST Appeal Case FY 2017-18 627 

GST Appeal Case FY 2018-19 2897 

GST Appeal Case FY 2019-20 141.20 

GST Appeal Case FY 2020-21 68.30 

Income Tax AY 2024-25 185.73 

454.69 16.67 

The above amounts are based on the natice of demand / Assessment Orders / claims by the 
relevant authorities /parties and the Company is contesting these claims. Outflows, if any, arising 
out of these claims would depend on the outcome of the decisions of the appellate authorities and 
the Company's rights for future appeals before the judiciary. The management believes that the 
ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Group's 
financial position and results of operations. 

Note: 49 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
Section 135 of Company Act 2013 is applicable upon the company and the company has made the 
relevant contributions In the activities specified in Schdule-7 to Section 135 of Company Act 2013 

The details for the same are disclosed below-: 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

(a) Amount required to be spent by the company | 10.78 4.06 
during the Year 

(b) Amount of expenditure incurred 835 6.50 

(c) Carried forward of previous year -2.44 - 

(d) Shortfall/(excess) at the end cf the year, if any ~01 -2.44 
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( e) Total of previcus years of Shartfall - - 

(f) Reasons of such Shortfall - - 

(9) details of related party transactions, eg, 
contribution to a trust controlled by the company In 
relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting 
Standard, 

(h) where a provision Is made with respect to a lfability 
incurred by entering into a contractual obligaticn, the 
mavements in the provision during the year should be 
shown separately. 

*CSR was not applicable on the company in FY 2022-23; hence no comparative figures are 
available. 

Note: 50 
Earning Per Share 
Annualised earnings / (loss) per equity share (basic and diluted) is arrived at based on ratio of 

profit/ (loss) attributable to equity shareholders to the weighted average number of equity shares. 

As per Indian Accounting Standard-33 “Earning per Share’, the Company's EPS is as under 

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Net Profit/(Loss) after tox as per Statement of | 701.41 754.75 

Profit & Loss 

Welghted average number of equity shares | 9,60,00,000 8.80,00,000 
outstanding during the year 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 073 0.86 

Face Value per Equity Share 2.00 2.00 

Note: 51 
Title Deeds of Immovable property 
Title deeds of Immaovable property are held in the name of the company. 

Note: 52 
Details of Benami Property held 
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami 
property under the Benam{ Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made 
thereunder. 

Note: 53 
Wilful Defaulter 
The company is not being declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks or financial institution or 
by any other lender. 

Note: 54 
Compliance with number of layers of companies 
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87).of section 2 of 
the Act read with Cempanies (Restriction on number cf Layers) Rules, 2017. 
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Note: 55 
Relationship with Struck off Companies 
Where company kas any transactions with struck off company as specified under section 248 of 
Company Act 2013 the details are stated below: 

Balance 
Nature of transactions with struck-off Company ;";’:.:m;{m;w‘k outstandin 

Investments in securities NA 7\!4 

Receivables NA NA 

Payables NA NA 

Shares held by struck-off Company N N 

Other outstanding balances (to be specified) NA | NA 

Note: 56 
Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 
The company has not traded in any of crypto or virtual currency during the firancial year ended 
31st March 2025, 

Note: 57 
Registration of Charges 
The company has registered all the charges with MCA and no charge is pending as on 31.03.2025. 

Note: 58 
Intangible assets under development 
There are no Intangible Assets under Development as ¢n 31st March 2025. 

Note: 59 
Working Capital/Borrowings 
The company has borrowings from Banks on the basis of security of Current Assets and the 
quarterly returns cr statements filled to the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts 
and no material discrepancy is being observed. 

Note: 60 
Working Capital/Borrowings 
Following are the Ratios for the current year as well as Previous Year: 

5 Current Previous 
Ratios Year Year % Change  Remarks 

Current Ratio 110 0.99 12% The ratio has 
decreased due increase 

in CC limit availed in 
during the year 

Debt Equity Ratio 018 | 041 -559% The ratio has declined 
due to increase in 
Share Capital 

Debt Service 095 0.89 7% The ratio has increase 
Coverage Ratio in due to increase in 

Interest cost during the 
year 
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Return on Equity 1% 24% -52% | The ratio has declined 
Ratio due to an increase in 

share capital through a 
public issue during the 
year 

Stock Turnover 4.31 6.11 -30% The company has 
Ratio increased its  stock 

levels to meet seasonal 
demand, which has 
resulted in a decline in 
the Inventory turnover 
ratio 

Debtors  Turnover 7.00 11.75 -40% The company has 
ratio extended its  credit 

period, leading to a 
decline in the debtor 
turnover ratio 

Creditors Turnover 1059 2.96 6% NA 
Ratio 

Net Capital 2191 -190.24 -112% The increase in ratios 
Turnover Ratio is attributed to the 

company’s efficient 

utllization of capital to 
| generate revenue 

Net Profit Ratio 6% 7% -10%  |NA 
Return on  Cap 7% 14% -50% The company 
Employed increased its share 

capital during the year, 
which has led to a 
decline in returns for 
the current period. 
However, the positive 
impact of this move is 
expected to be realized 
In the coming years 

Return on 8% 19% -58% The company 
Investments increased its  share 

capital during the year, 
which has led to a 
decline in returns for 

the current period. 
However, the positive 
impact of this move is 

expected to be realized 
in the coming years 

Note: 61 
Litigation & Claims 
(a) The company has filed the following suit for recovery on the following supplier of 
machinery for manufacture of zinc and installation thereof. 
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The company has filed a suit for recovery of Rs. 8, 32, 23,949/~ from "Vimal Organics” for 
improper and incomplete work done in the supply and coramissioning of the machinery. The 
recovery is for covering losses incurred by the company on account of loss of time, interest, 
loss of profit, liquidated damages etc. 

(b) The company has also filed suit for recovery against Prime Technoplast Pvt. Ltd. for a 
principal sum of Rs. 57,02,403/- which the debtor has not paid to the company. Further the 
company has charged Rs 17,48,081/- as interest pertaining to FY 2019-20 which in total 
accumulates to Rs 92,33,402/-. Due to interest the total amount recoverable as on 31.03.2023 
isRs 1,49,35.805/-. 

Note: 62 
The company has capitalized its Initial Public Offering (IPO) expenses by amortizing them 
against the securities premium arising from the issuance of shares, in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS). As per Ind AS 32, the securities 
premiumn account can be utilized for writing off expenses directly attributable to the issuance 
of equity shares, such as underwriting fees, legal costs, and other direct costs associated with 
the IPO process. The amortization of these expenses Is systematically spread over a period, 
aligning with the company’s financial policy and in compliance with the prescribed accounting 
framework. 

Note: 63 
Trade receivables, trade payables unsecured loan from directors, Security & EMD Deposits and 
Security received from dealers are subject to confirmation. 

Note: 64 
Previous year figures have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to make 
them comparable with current year figures. 

AUDITOR'S REPORT For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
In terms of our report of even date ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED 
As per our Audit Report of even date attached 

sd/- sd/- 

For Jerath & Co Yashipal Singh Yadav Tej Pal Singh 
Chartered Accountants (Managing Director) (Director) 
FRN 08407N 00859217 06898372 

sd/- sd/- sd/- 
CA Navneet jerath Anurag Agarwal CS Aayushee Bhatia 
M.No. 085790 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Date: 30.05.2025 
Place: Noida 
UDIN-25085790BMIEKN7032 
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Statement of Principal Terms of Secured loan 

(Annexure-1) 

Eor the Pelod ended on 31/03/2024 
Bank |Purpose [Sanctioned Rate of [Security \MoratoriunNon-  Current |Outstanding 

smount Taterest |0ffered | Lurrent \Balance as on 
[ 1/03/2024 

Tovota Financial | Vekicle | 27.00 897% | Hypothecation of vehicle | Rs. 56,021 | No 00 00 00 
Services Loon- Loan Month 
Fortuner 

Toyota Financial | Verlcle | 132.00 945% | Hypothecation of venicle | Rs. 277,225 | o 00 543 | £a3 
Services Loan- Loan ‘ Month 
Land Cruiser | 
TCICI Bank-LAP L4P 7475 10.75% | Immovable Property held | Rs. 101,914 | No 5444 | 602 60.96 

in the name of Director | Monch 
Toyota financial Vehicle | 1899 7.84% | Hypathecation of vehicle Rs 46217 | lo 400 502 902 
Services Loan- Loan Month 
Innova Crysta ! 
Bunk of India vehicl{ Vehicle | 2800 [ 9.20% | Hypathecation of vehicle Rs 45335 I o 2174 | 327 2501 
loan -Innova Loan Month 
Bank of India vehicl{ Vehicle | 190.00 885% | Hypothecation of vehicle Rs. 304249 | o 
loan -Mercedes | Loan Month 
Toyota Financial | Vehicle | 180.00 898% | Hypothecation of venicle | Rs. 3,73475 | No 
Services Loan- Loan Month 
Land Cruiser 
Axis Bank- Vehicle | Vehicle | 240.00 9.95% | Hypothecation of vehicle R5.5,09339 | lo 19807 | 3945 | 23752 
Loan Loan month 
Indusind bank CC | Cash 200.00 10.25% | Immovabie Property No 00 20142 | 20142 

credte heid in the name of 3 
Subsidiary 
“Arawali Phasphate Ltd" 

SBIcC Cash | 50000 9.05% | Immovable Property of o 00 45331 | 45331 
credit l Anya Polytech Fertilizers | - 

SBI- FCNB- CC ;fi:: 1500.00 \ 8.58% %d,mmm Ht?mplltll - | .00 150881 | 150881 
it name of 2 

SBISLC Cash 300.00 0.00% | Directar and - |00 29729 | 297.29 
credit Immovable groperty heid | - 

In the hame of Yara Infra 
LLP 

SBI Term Loan Flant | 110000 | 5.05% | Hypothecation of Flant| Rs2500,000, 6Months | 54 5000 | 5054 
SBIFCND M”‘“W TB60% | Mochinerles Quarter | 90558 | 5000 | 955.56 

Division 
| 
| 118437 2620.02| 380438 

Ear the Period ended on 31/03/2025 
Bank Purpose Sanctioned | Rate of | Security Repayment |Moratorium |Non- | Current |Outstanding 

amount | Interest| Offered Schedule Current as 
#1/03/2025 

Tuyote Financial Vehicle | 132.00 [545% Hypothecatfon of vehicle | Rs. 2,77,225 | No 00 .00 .00 
Services Loan- Loan Month 
Land Cruser | 
ICIC! Bank-LAF [ 74rs 10.75% | Immovable Property held in| Rs. 101,914 | No 473 | 670 | 544 

name of Director Month 

Topata financal Vehicle | 1899 7.84% | Hypothecation of vehicle Rs 46217 | No 00 400 400 
services Loan- Loan Month 
Innovg Crysta 
Toyota financlal Vehicle | 39.00 9.01% | Hypothecation of vehicle Rs 80,958 ‘ o 2596 | 703 3299 
services Loan- Loan Month 
Fortuner 

Bank of India Venicle | 28.00 920% | Hypathecation of vehicle | Rs 45335 | a iB1s | 389 | 21.74 
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vehicle Joan -innova | Loan Month | 
ICICI Bank-G Wagon | Vehicle | 375.00 10.60% | Hypothecation of vehicle | Rs. 810,474 | No 26640 | 6521 | 331.62 

Loan Month 
SB1-Scorpio Loan Vehicle | 21.00 Hypothecatton of vehicle Rs. 35500 ’ Mo 1788 | 226 2014 

Loan Month 
s Bank- Vehicle | 240.00 9.95% | Hypothecation of vehicle | Rs.5,09339 | o 15256 | 4356 | 19612 
Vehicle Loon Loan month 
Indusind bank CC | Cash | 200.00 1025% | Immovable Property held in| Tio 00 20127 | 20127 

credit ‘nume of Subsidiary 
“Arawal Phosphate Lrd" 

561 CC Cash 500.00 9.05% | Immovable Property of ‘ Mo 00 1744.62 | 174462 
L e oredit | Anya Polytech Ferciizers | - 
S8l FCNB- CC Cash 1500.00 858% | Ltd, Immovable Property ‘ o 00 00 .00 

credit held in the name of a 
Sersic Cash | 30000 0.00% | Director und 00 30202 | 30202 

credic Immovable property 
held in the name 
2 Yara Infratech LLP. 

S8l Term Loan Plant 1100.00 9.05% | Hypothecation of mzs,oami o 00 2514 | 2514 

581 Term Loan pac Bo0s | Plant& Machineries i g 78289 | 10000 | 88289 

Diviston ’ 
BoI0D Overdraf 1350.00 Tmmovable Property held in 134661 | 134661 

‘name of Director [ 

I {31158 | 3852.01) 516359 
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FORM NO. MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the member (s]  : 
Registered address s 
E-mail Id 2 
Folio No/Client ID : 
DPID : 

1/We, bemg the member (5] of equity shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint 
Name: Address; 
E-mail 1&: Signature: or failing kim 

2. Name: Address;, 
E-mail 1&: Signature: or failing him 

3. Name: Address:, 
E-mail Id: Signature: 

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on 2 poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14 Annual General 
Meeting of the company, to be held on Monday, the 29th day of September, 2025 at 12: 00 p.m. Indian 
Standard Time (IST) at the registered office of the Company at S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 
International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of 
such resolutions as are indicated below- 

S.No. Resolution Optional 
For | Against 

Ordinary Business 
1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2025 and Reports of Board of Directors and 
Reports of Auditors thereon. 

2 To receive, consider and adopt the consolidated Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2025 and Reports of Board of 
Directors and Reports of Auditors thereon. 

3 To re-appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tejpal Singh (DIN 
06898372), who retires by rotation in terms of section 
152(6) of the Companies Act2013 and being eligible, 
offers himself for reappointment, 

Special Business 
4 Appointment of Secretarial Auditors 

5 Appointment of Cost Auditor and to fix Remuneration 

6 Material Related Party Transactions of the Company with 
Arawali Phosphate Limited ("APL"), Polyfirm Packaging 
Private Limited (*PPPL") and Yara Green Energy Privata 
Limited (“YGEPL"), being fellow subsidiaries of the 
Company 

Signed this e G2Y OF curmucemommssmems 2025 Affix Revenue 
Signature of shareholder Stamp 
Signature of Proxy holder(s), 

Note: 
This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting, 
For the Resolusions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of 14* Annual General Meeting 
Itis optional to put an "X" in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Bax If you leave the 
“For' or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as 
he/she thinks appropriate. 
Please complete all detzils of member(s) in abave bax before submission.



ATTENDANCE SLIP 

Registered Folio No. / DP ID No./ Client 
ID No. 

Name and address of the Member(s) 
Name of the Proxy (To be filled only 

when a proxy attends the meeting) 

Number of Shares held 

1 certify that I am a member / proxy for the member of the Company 

1/We hereby record my /our presence at the 14® Annual General Meeting of the Company held 
on Monday, the 29th day of September, 2025 at 12: 00 p.m. Indian Standard Time (IST) 
at the registered office of the Company at S - 2, Level Upper Ground Floor, Block - E, 

International Trade Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019, 

Name of the member/ proxy Signature of member/proxy 

Notes: 
Members/Proxy attending the meeting must complete this attendance slip and hand it over 

at entrance. 
Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the Meeting.



ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE FOR 147 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF 
ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED 

'VENUE OF AGM: 
ANYA POLYTECH & FERTILIZERS LIMITED 

S -2, LEVEL, UPPER GROUND FLOOR, BLOCK - E INTERNATIONAL 
TRADE TOWER, NEHRU PLACE, NEW DELHI -110019
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